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AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Governors of Red River College 

 

We have audited the statement of financial position of Red River College as at June 30, 2007 and the 

statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These 

financial statements are the responsibility of the College’s management. Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 

standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 

financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 

of the College as at June 30, 2007 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then 

ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 

Our examination did not extend to the budget which has been provided as additional information and 

therefore we do not express any opinion concerning the budget. 

 

Signed “KPMG LLP” 

 

Chartered Accountants 

 

Winnipeg, Canada 

September 7, 2007 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Statement of Financial Position 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
June 30, 2007, with comparative figures for 2006 
 

  2007 2006 
 

Assets 
 
Current assets: 

Cash and short-term investments - trust and endowment 
(note 3) $ 1,061 $ 3,979 

Cash and short-term investments (note 3) 6,478 2,265 
Accounts receivable (note 4) 3,171 3,214 
Current portion of note receivable - RRC Students’ Association [note 20(a)] 40 –    
Inventories  693 958 
Prepaid expenses and other assets (note 5) 2,589 3,089 
  14,032 13,505 

 
Long term investments - trust and endowment (note 6) 8,656 4,273 
 
Due from Province of Manitoba (note 7) 9,253 9,253 
 
Note receivable - RRC Students’ Association [note 20(a)] 210 –    
 
Capital assets (note 8) 70,166 72,189 
 
Intangible asset 10 12 
 
  $ 102,327 $ 99,232 

 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
 
Current liabilities: 

Bank indebtedness (note 9) $ 255 $ 1,340 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 10) 22,728 19,754 
Current portion of obligations under capital leases (note 11) 1,615 1,458 
Deferred revenue 4,150 4,559 
  28,748 27,111 

 
Obligations under capital leases (note 11) 1,272 1,350 
 
Deferred contributions (note 12) 3,395 3,087 
 
Deferred capital campaign contributions (note 13) 3,342 3,431 
 
Deferred contributions related to capital assets (note 14) 50,583 53,181 
 
Net assets: 

Invested in capital and intangible assets (note 15) 13,364 12,785 
Restricted for endowments (note 16) 8,205 7,078 
Internally restricted (note 16) 2,803 1,145 
Unrestricted net assets (9,385) (9,936) 
  14,987 11,072 

Commitments [notes 14, 19 and 20(a)] 
 
  $ 102,327 $ 99,232 

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
 
Approved by the Board of Governors: 

  
      Chair     Vice-Chair 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Statement of Operations 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended June 30, 2007, with comparative figures for 2006 
 

  Budget 2007 2006 
  (Unaudited) 
 
Revenue: 

Academic training fees $ 22,309 $ 26,387 $ 24,874 
Grants and reimbursements 67,496 66,996 62,553 
International education 800 974 776 
Continuing education 8,259 7,788 7,327 
Sundry and other revenue 12,779 11,609 9,679 
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital  

assets/investments –    (14) 2 
Amortization of deferred contributions 5,095 5,168 5,301 
  116,738 118,908 110,512 

 
Expenses: 

Instruction 63,976 66,546 60,747 
Library 1,717 1,831 1,705 
Administration and general 24,873 20,173 18,981 
Physical plant 14,739 14,154 13,423 
Student services 3,555 3,953 3,662 
Amortization of capital and intangible assets 6,600 8,735 8,227 

  115,460 115,392 106,745 
 
Excess of revenue over expenses before 

other items 1,278 3,516 3,767 
 
Other item: 

Net increase in accrued vacation and  
severance liability (1,278) (728) (765) 

 
Excess of revenue over expenses $ –    $ 2,788 $ 3,002 

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended June 30, 2007, with comparative figures for 2006 
 

  Invested in Restricted     
  capital and for endow- Internally  2007 2006 

 intangible assets ments restricted Unrestricted Total Total 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 12,785 $ 7,078 $ 1,145 $ (9,936) $ 11,072 $ 6,768 

 
Endowment gifts  –    1,127 –    –    1,127 1,227 
 
Amounts restricted for  

endowments  –    –    –    –    –    75 
 
Transfer to internally restricted –    –    1,658 (1,658) –   –    
 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue  

over expenses (4,002) –    –    6,790 2,788 3,002 
 
Investment in capital assets 4,581 –    –    (4,581) –   –    
 
Balance, end of year $ 13,364 $ 8,205 $ 2,803 $ (9,385) $ 14,987 $ 11,072 

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Statement of Cash Flows 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended June 30, 2007, with comparative figures for 2006 
 

  2007 2006 
 
Operating activities: 

Excess of revenue over expenses $ 2,788 $ 3,002 
Adjustments for: 

Amortization of intangible assets 2 2 
Amortization of capital assets 8,733 8,227 
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (4,747) (4,743) 
Other deferred contributions recognized as revenue (2,083) (2,282) 
Other deferred contributions received 2,484 2,319 
Trust funds used to support College activities (99) –    
Loss (gain) on disposal of capital assets 14 (2) 

Change in non-cash working capital balances (note 17) 3,373 (674) 
  10,465 5,849 

 
Investing activities: 

Purchase of capital assets (4,706) (7,037) 
Long-term investment for trust and endowment (4,383) (4,025) 
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets –    2 
Loan provided to RRC Students’ Association (250) –    
  (9,339) (11,060) 

 
Financing activities: 

Endowment gifts received 1,126 1,227 
Contributions received for capital purposes 1,831 3,507 
Capital campaign contributions 208 195 
Repayment of obligations under capital leases (1,911) (2,147) 
  1,254 2,782 
 

Increase (decrease) in cash and short-term investments 2,380 (2,429) 
 
Cash and short-term investments, beginning of year 4,904 7,333 
 
Cash and short-term investments, end of year $ 7,284 $ 4,904 

 
Comprised of: 

Cash and short-term investments - trust and endowment $ 1,061 $ 3,979 
Cash and short-term investments 6,478 2,265 
Bank indebtedness (255) (1,340) 

 
  $ 7,284 $ 4,904 

 

The following have been excluded from the financing and investing activities on the statement of cash 

flows: 

The portion of the purchase price of assets under capital lease satisfied by the assumption of debt in 

the amount of $1,990 (2006 - $1,850). 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended June 30, 2007 
 

 

1. General: 

Red River College (the College) operates under the authority of The Colleges Act of Manitoba. 

This legislation, which established the College as a board-governed institution on April 1, 1993, 

allowed for the transfer of assets, liabilities, investment in capital assets and contributed surplus 

from the Province of Manitoba (the Province). The College is a registered charity under the 

Income Tax Act. 

2. Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Inventories: 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. 

(b) Capital assets: 

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their 

fair value at the time of the donation. Library holdings are accounted for using the base 

stock method. Under this method, the value of the base stock is capitalized, but subsequent 

purchases are not capitalized because it has been determined that annual additions are 

approximately equal to reductions. Capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis 

using an annual rate of: 

 

Asset  Rate 
 
Buildings    2.5% 
Major renovations  5% 
Equipment and furniture  10 - 20% 
Computer equipment and software  20 - 33% 
Vehicles  20% 
Aircraft  5% 
Leasehold improvements  Over the term of the lease 
 

 

(c) Donations: 

Donations are recorded when received. Donations of materials and equipment are recorded 

at fair value. 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended June 30, 2007 
 

 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(d) Revenue recognition: 

The College follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions, which include 

donations and government grants. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue 

when received. Contributions externally restricted for purposes other than endowment are 

deferred and recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are 

recognized. Endowment contributions are recognized as direct increases in net assets in 

the period in which they are received. 

The unearned portion of tuition fees and contractual training revenue received but not 

earned until next fiscal year is recorded as deferred revenue. 

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the related 

expenses are recognized. Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue when 

earned. 

(e) Intangible asset: 

The intangible asset is recorded at cost and is amortized on a straight-line basis using an 

annual rate of 10 percent. 

(f) Deferred contributions: 

Debt owing to the Province is reflected as deferred contributions in the statement of 

financial position. The related revenue earned from the Council on Post-Secondary 

Education (COPSE) to offset the interest expense and the related interest expense are both 

excluded from the statement of operations. 

(g) Foreign currency translation: 

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies have been translated into Canadian 

dollars at year end exchange rates with any gain or loss included in income in the year. 

Revenues and expenses have been translated at the exchange rate in effect at the 

transaction date. 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended June 30, 2007 
 

 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(h) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of 

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 

amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those 

estimates. 

3. Short-term investments: 

Short-term investment activity is transacted with the Department of Finance of the Province in 

short-term deposits. Interest rates on short-term investments range between 4.00 percent and 

4.20 percent. Short-term investments mature between July 2007 and September 2007. 

4. Accounts receivable 

 

  2007 2006 
 
Trust and endowment receivables $ 159 $ 263 
Other accounts receivable 3,012 2,951 

 
  $ 3,171 $ 3,214 

 

5. Prepaid expenses and other assets: 

 

  2007 2006 
 
Prepaid property taxes $ 1,320 $ 1,274 
Other prepaid expenses 992 1,332 
Datatel flexible spending account 277 483 

 
  $ 2,589 $ 3,089 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended June 30, 2007 
 

 

6. Long-term investments: 

 

 2007 2006 
 Fair  Fair  
  value Cost value Cost 
 
Cash and fixed term 

instruments $ 7,426 $ 7,426 $ 3,274 $ 3,274 
Equity investments 1,393 1,230 952 999 
 
 $ 8,819 $ 8,656 $ 4,226 $ 4,273 

 

Fair value as represented above was derived from the quoted market value of investments. 

7. Due from Province of Manitoba: 

The balance due from the Province is non-interest bearing, unsecured and has no fixed terms 

of repayment. This balance arose when the severance and vacation pay liabilities were 

transferred from the Province to the College in 1996. The amount of the receivable has been 

recorded on a non-discounted basis. The fair value of the receivable on a discounted basis 

would be significantly less than the carrying value and the difference would be materially 

impacted by the effective discount rate and timing of repayments utilized. 

8. Capital assets: 

 

 2007 2006 
  Accumulated Net book Net book 
  Cost amortization value value 
 
Equipment and furniture $ 26,336 $ 17,843 $ 8,493 $ 9,994 
Computer equipment and  

software 19,907 15,872 4,035 3,991 
Major renovations 6,067 1,817 4,250 4,491 
Buildings 48,472 3,936 44,536 45,165 
Vehicles 208 103 105 67 
Aircraft 1,716 356 1,360 1,446 
Leasehold improvements 4,870 2,347 2,523 2,596 
Construction in progress 580 –    580 33 
Assets under capital leases 9,408 6,347 3,061 3,183 
Library holdings 1,223 –    1,223 1,223 
 
 $ 118,787 $ 48,621 $ 70,166 $ 72,189 

 

The assets under capital leases are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected useful 

life of the assets. The amount of amortization charged to expense is $2,113 (2006 - $2,263). 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended June 30, 2007 
 

 

8. Capital assets (continued): 

The increase in net book value of capital assets is due to the following: 

 

  2007 2006 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 72,189 $ 71,298 
Purchase of capital assets: 

Funded by deferred capital contributions 1,831 3,507 
Funded by deferred capital campaign contributions 208 195 
Internally funded 4,581 5,483 
Financed through capital lease proceeds 83 (300) 

Donations of capital assets 21 231 
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (14) 2 
Amortization of capital assets (8,733) (8,227) 

 
Balance, end of year $ 70,166 $ 72,189 

 

9. Bank indebtedness: 

Bank indebtedness of $255 (2006 - $1,340) represents cheques issued in excess of cash on 

deposit with Royal Bank of Canada. 

In addition, the College has a $5,000 operating line of credit with the Province, bearing interest 

at prime. 

10. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities: 

 

  2007 2006 
 
Trade payables $ 4,417 $ 3,102 
Trust and endowment payables 14 3 
Accrued salaries and benefits 3,086 2,166 
Accrued retirement severance pay 7,051 7,057 
Accrued vacation pay 8,160 7,426 

 
  $ 22,728 $ 19,754 

 

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the severance obligations at June 30, 2007 and 

June 30, 2006 were: 

 

 
Interest rate on obligations    7.00% 
Employer current service cost as a percentage of salary  .62% 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended June 30, 2007 
 

 

11. Obligations under capital leases: 

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases expiring 

between July 2007 and April 2012 together with the balances of the obligations under capital 

leases: 

 

 
2008   $ 1,740 
2009  916 
2010  252 
2011  127 
2012  38 
Total minimum lease payments  3,073 
 
Less amount representing interest (ranging from 5% to 10%)  (186) 
Balance of obligations  2,887 
 
Current portion  1,615 
 
    $ 1,272 

 

Interest expense on the lease obligations amounted to $181 (2006 - $184). 

12. Deferred contributions: 

Deferred contributions represent the portion of the provincial operating grant and other 

contributions that pertains to expenditures of the following year and donations for various 

scholarships, bursaries and other specific purposes to be paid out in future years. 

 

  2007 2006 
 
Deferred provincial operating grant: 

Balance, beginning of year $ 1,657 $ 1,724 
Amount recognized as revenue during the year (1,657) (1,724) 
Amount received related to following year 1,738 1,657 
Balance, end of year 1,738 1,657 

 
Deferred other contributions: 

Balance, beginning of year  1,430  1,401 
Amount recognized as revenue during the year (426) (558) 
Amount restricted for endowment (1) (75) 
Trust funds used to support college operations (99) –    
Amount received related to following year 753 662 
Balance, end of year 1,657 1,430 

 
  $ 3,395 $ 3,087 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended June 30, 2007 
 

 

13. Deferred capital campaign contributions: 

Deferred capital campaign contributions represent donations received for capital fundraising 

campaigns. The donations are being amortized on the same basis as the capital assets to 

which they relate. The changes in the deferred capital campaign contributions balance are as 

follows: 

 

  2007 2006 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 3,431 $ 3,523 
Less amortization of deferred capital campaign 

contributions during the year (297) (287) 
Add donations received during the year 208 195 

 
Balance, end of year $ 3,342 $ 3,431 

 

14. Deferred capital contributions: 

Deferred capital contributions represent the unamortized amount of grants, donations and other 

revenue received for the purchase of capital assets.  

The amortization of capital contributions is recorded as revenue in the statement of operations. 

The changes in the deferred capital contributions are as follows: 

 

  2007 2006 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 53,181 $ 53,899 
Less amortization of deferred contributions (4,450) (4,456) 
Add: 

Contributions received for capital purposes 1,831 3,507 
Donations-in-kind 21 231 

 
Balance, end of year $ 50,583 $ 53,181 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended June 30, 2007 
 

 

14. Deferred capital contributions (continued): 

Unamortized capital contributions of $50,583 (2006 - $53,181) include contributions received 

from the Province for the purchase of capital assets. The College has executed promissory 

notes for these contributions. The promissory notes are payable to the Department of Finance 

of the Province and the payment of these liabilities is guaranteed and funded by the COPSE. No 

new funding is expected to be received with respect to these obligations and no revenue or 

expense is recorded in accordance with their extinguishment, except for the amortization of the 

deferred contributions. The balances of the promissory notes are as follows: 

 

  2007 2006 
 
Phase 1 - 6.6% interest, maturing June 30, 2042, 

repayable in monthly instalments of $71 
including principal and interest $ 12,097 $ 12,190 

Phase 2 - 6.3% interest, maturing June 30, 2043, 
repayable in monthly instalments of $122 
including principal and interest 20,960 21,111 

Phase 3 - 6.3% interest, maturing June 30, 2043, 
repayable in monthly instalments of $46 
including principal and interest 8,621 8,680 

 
  $ 41,678 $ 41,981 

 

15. Investment in capital and intangible assets: 

The investment in capital and intangible assets consists of the following: 

 

  2007 2006 
 
Capital assets, net book value $ 70,166 $ 72,189 
Intangible assets, net book value 10 12 
Less: 

Amounts financed by deferred capital campaign 
contributions  (3,342) (3,431) 

Deferred capital contributions (50,583) (53,181) 
Amounts financed by capital lease (2,887) (2,804) 

 
Balance, end of year $ 13,364 $ 12,785 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended June 30, 2007 
 

 

15. Investment in capital and intangible assets (continued): 

The change in investment in capital and intangible assets is calculated as follows: 

 

  2007 2006 
 
Purchase of capital assets internally financed $ 4,581 $ 5,483 
Amortization of: 

Capital and intangible assets (8,735) (8,229) 
Deferred capital contributions 4,450 4,456 
Deferred capital campaign contributions  297 287 

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (14) 3 
 
Increase in investment in capital and intangible assets $ 579 $ 2,000 

 

16. Restrictions on net assets: 

Net assets restricted for endowment purposes are subject to externally imposed restrictions 

stipulating that the resources be maintained permanently. Investment income on these 

resources is externally restricted to provide various scholarships, bursaries and other 

expenditures. 

Internally restricted net assets consist of the following: 

 

  2007 2006 
 
Princess Street campus structural reserve $ 537 $ 430 
Notre Dame campus structural reserve  200  –    
Contract training net proceeds  1,266  715 
Campus renovations reserve  800  –    
 
Balance, end of year $ 2,803 $ 1,145 

 

Under college internal best practice guidelines, net proceeds earned from designated contract 

training activities are restricted and eligible for expenditure under certain conditions, in the years 

following contract completion. 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended June 30, 2007 
 

 

17. Change in non-cash working capital balances: 

 

  2007 2006 
 
Accounts receivable $ 43 $ (520) 
Inventories 265 (58) 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 500 (1,006) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,974 467 
Deferred revenue (409) 443 

 
Change in non-cash working capital $ 3,373 $ (674) 

 

18. Pension costs and obligations: 

The College, together with other related and unrelated parties, is part of a defined benefit 

pension plan (Civil Service Superannuation Plan) that satisfies the definition of a multi-employer 

plan. The costs of the benefit plan are not allocated to the individual entities within the group. As 

a result, individual entities within the group are not able to identify their share of the underlying 

assets and liabilities. Therefore, the plan is accounted for as a defined contribution plan in 

accordance with the requirements of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants 

Handbook, Section 3461. 

The expense related to the pension plan was $805 (2006 - $587). These contributions represent 

the total pension obligations of the College. The College is not required under present legislation 

to make contributions with respect to any actuarial deficiencies of the plan. 

19. Commitments: 

The College leases classroom and office space in Winnipeg, Portage la Prairie, Steinbach and 

Winkler, Manitoba. The College has also contracted for services, as well as leased certain 

computer and other equipment. Minimum annual lease and contractual commitment payments 

for accommodation, services, construction costs and equipment, in aggregate, for each of the 

next five years, is approximately as follows: 

 

 
2008   $ 1,913 
2009  1,731 
2010  1,194 
2011  915 
2012  904 
 
    $ 6,657 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended June 30, 2007 
 

 

19. Commitments (continued): 

The College has received approval to construct a Heavy Equipment Training Centre at the 

Notre Dame campus for an estimated cost of $15.1 million. Construction is expected to 

commence in early 2008. 

The Centre will be secured by a promissory note and will be funded both internally and through 

funding from the Province and other capital contributions. The College plans to account for the 

funding of the building as a deferred capital contribution (note 14). 

20. Related parties: 

(a) Red River College Students’ Association Inc.: 

The Red River College Students’ Association (the Students’ Association) is an organization 

significantly influenced by the College. The Students’ Association is responsible for 

providing services such as health and dental benefits, study and lounging areas, and a 

voice on the College’s Board of Governors to students of the College. The Students’ 

Association and the Students’ Association Building Fund (SABF) are incorporated under the 

Corporations Act of Manitoba and operate on a not-for-profit basis. SABF is a wholly-owned 

subsidiary of the Students’ Association. In the current year, the College agreed to loan $375 

to SABF and during the year advanced $250 to be used to construct a new student lounge 

on the Notre Dame campus. The remaining $125 will be advanced in 2008. The note 

receivable is unsecured and non-interest bearing. Repayment is set to begin in February 

2008 and the balance will be repaid as follows: 

 

 
2008   $ 40 
2009  100 
2010  105 
2011  105 
2012  25 
 
    $ 375 

 

The net assets and results of operations of the Students’ Association and SABF are not 

included in the statements of the College. 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended June 30, 2007 
 

  

20. Related parties (continued): 

(b) Crecomm Radio Inc.: 

Crecomm Radio Inc. (Crecomm), is an organization controlled and partially funded by the 

College. It operates a campus radio station and provides training and educational 

opportunities for Creative Communication students. Crecomm is incorporated under the 

Corporations Act of Manitoba. As at June 30, 2007, net assets of Crecomm amount to a 

deficit of $125 and there is a balance owing to the College of $138. 

The net assets and results from operations of Crecomm are not included in the statements 

of the College. 

(c) Canadian Animal Blood Bank Inc.: 

The Canadian Animal Blood Bank Inc. (the Blood Bank) is a significantly influenced 

investee owned 50 percent by the College and 50 percent by the Manitoba Veterinary 

Medical Association. The Blood Bank is dedicated to improving veterinary care by providing 

blood products for animals who require transfusion therapy. The Blood Bank is incorporated 

under the Corporations Act of Manitoba and operates on a not-for-profit basis. As at 

May 31, 2007, net resources of the Blood Bank amount to $84. 

The net assets and results of operations of the Blood Bank are not included in the 

statements of the College. 

21. Financial instruments: 

Credit risk: 

Credit risk is the risk to the College’s earnings arising from the risk that a counter party to a 

transaction is unable to satisfy its obligations to the College. Credit risk is mitigated by the fact 

that the College’s accounts receivable are comprised of a large number of comparatively small 

individual balances. 
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RED RIVER COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 
Year ended June 30, 2007 
 

  

21. Financial instruments (continued): 

Fair value: 

The carrying amounts of short-term financial assets and liabilities are a reasonable estimate of 

their fair values because of the short maturity of those instruments. Short-term financial assets 

are comprised of cash, short-term investments and accounts receivable. Short-term financial 

liabilities are comprised of accounts payable and accrued liabilities and current portion of 

obligations under capital leases. The fair value of obligations under capital leases are also 

approximately equal to their carrying amounts. The fair value of the long-term investments is 

disclosed in note 6. 

The fair value of the note receivable from the Red River College Students’ Association and the 

balance due from the Province of Manitoba is not readily determinable due to the underlying 

terms and conditions. 

22. Comparative figures: 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the financial statement 

presentation adopted in the current year. 
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Management's Responsibility

To the Board of Assiniboine Regional Health Authority:

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements, including
responsibility for significant accounting judgments and estimates in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
and ensuring that all information in the annual report is consistent with the statements.  This responsibility includes selecting appropriate
accounting principles and methods, and making decisions affecting the measurement of transactions in which objective judgment is
required.

In discharging its responsibilities for the integrity and fairness of the consolidated financial statements, management designs and
maintains the necessary accounting systems and related internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are authorized,
assets are safeguarded and financial records are properly maintained to provide reliable information for the preparation of financial
statements.

The Board of Directors and Audit Committee are composed entirely of Directors who are neither management nor employees of the
organization.  The Board is responsible for overseeing management in the performance of its financial reporting responsibilities, and for
approving the financial information included in the annual report.  The Board fulfils these responsibilities by reviewing the financial
information prepared by management and discussing relevant matters with management and external auditors.  The Audit Committee has
the responsibility of meeting with management and external auditors to discuss the internal controls over the financial reporting process,
auditing matters and financial reporting issues.  The Audit Committee is also responsible for recommending the appointment of the
organization's external auditors.

Meyers Norris Penny LLP, an independent firm of Chartered Accountants, is appointed by the Board to audit the consolidated financial
statements and report directly to them; their report follows.  The external auditors have full and free access to, and meet periodically and
separately with, both the Audit Committee and management to discuss their audit findings.

June 6, 2008

__________________________        __________________________
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Auditors' Report

To the Directors of Assiniboine Regional Health Authority:

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of Assiniboine Regional Health Authority as at March 31, 2008 and

the consolidated statements of operations,  net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended.  These consolidated financial statements

are the responsibility of the Organization's management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial

statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that we plan and

perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An

audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.  An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the

overall consolidated financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Organization as

at March 31, 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally

accepted accounting principles.

Brandon, Manitoba

June 6, 2008 Chartered Accountants

1401 Princess Avenue, Brandon, Manitoba, R7A 7L7, Phone: (204) 727-0661, 1-800-446-0890
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2008 2007

Assets
Current Assets

Cash 17,649,579             18,285,357             
Marketable securities 3,837,455               3,682,990               
Accounts receivable (Note 3) 2,063,836               2,059,608               
Manitoba Health receivable - vacation entitlement (Note 4) 6,484,052               6,484,052               
Inventories 962,881                  1,129,108               
Prepaid expenses 620,107                  582,830                  

31,617,910 32,223,945             

Manitoba Health receivable - pre-retirement obligation (Note 5) 7,336,760               7,336,760               

Capital assets (Note 6) 84,695,735             75,074,652             

Trust assets 113,683                  104,328                  

123,764,088         114,739,685          

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 12,158,842             9,483,978               
Due to Manitoba Health (Note 7) 766,560                  5,348,914               
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8) 153,290                  144,394                  
Accrued vacation entitlement (Note 4) 7,621,077               7,095,169               

20,699,769             22,072,455             
Long-term debt (Note 8) 2,531,238               2,684,131               
Accrued pre-retirement obligation (Note 5) 9,281,842               8,882,291               
Deferred contributions (Note 9) 84,710,648             75,637,235             
Trust liabilities 113,683                  104,328                  

117,337,180           109,380,440           

Commitments and contingencies (Note 10) -                          -                          

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets (Note 11) 3,275,190               3,336,867               
Internally restricted (Note 12) 210,746                  247,481                  
Unrestricted 2,940,972               1,774,897               

6,426,908               5,359,245               

123,764,088         114,739,685          

Approved on behalf of the Board:
Director  _________________________ Director  ____________________

Assiniboine Regional Health Authority
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at March 31, 2008

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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2008 2007
Revenues

Manitoba Health operating income (Note 13) 127,370,745         119,790,997         
Authorized/residential charges 12,617,559           12,333,338           
Amortization of deferred contributions 4,151,394             4,351,620             
Other income 4,794,830             4,112,298             
Ancillary 1,177,503             1,262,581             
Province of Manitoba 2,021,184             2,093,172             

152,133,215         143,944,006         

Expenses
Acute care 49,043,223           45,171,617           
Long-term care 49,762,788           46,556,507           
Community-based home care services 11,321,511           10,670,229           
Medical remuneration 9,845,399             10,402,042           
Community health clinics 1,017,672             35,806                  
Community-based health services 5,607,045             5,124,760             
Land ambulance 5,497,968             5,083,512             
Community-based mental health services 1,864,721             1,801,149             
Therapy services 875,288                768,672                
Community-based services administration 687,670                648,977                

135,523,285         126,263,271         

Other Undistributed Costs
Regional health authority costs 8,583,550             7,458,404             
Amortization of capital assets 4,362,621             4,531,577             
Ancillary 1,155,077             1,238,842             
Pre-retirement 1,445,560             1,294,151             

15,546,808           14,522,974           

Total expenses and other undistributed costs 151,070,093         140,786,245         

Excess of revenues over expenses 1,063,122           3,157,761             

Assiniboine Regional Health Authority
Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the year ended March 31, 2008

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
4
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Invested in Internally
Capital assets Restricted Unrestricted 2008 2007

Balance, beginning of year 3,336,867        247,481        1,774,897      5,359,245      1,865,781        

Transfer to (from) deferred contributions -                       -                    6,157             6,157             247,107           

Investment in capital assets 144,722           (153,484)       (22,484)         (31,246)          (664)                

Internally restricted assets -                       116,749        -                     116,749         117,091           

Excess of revenues over expenses (206,399)          -                    1,269,521      1,063,122      3,157,761        

Elderly Persons Housing adjustments -                       -                    (51,283)         (51,283)          (34,764)           

Transferred to Municipalities -                       (35,836)         (35,836)          -                      

Reclassification from prior year -                       -                    -                     -                     6,933               

Balance, end of year 3,275,190       210,746      2,940,972    6,426,908      5,359,245      

Assiniboine Regional Health Authority
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended March 31, 2008

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
5
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2008 2007

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Excess of revenues over expenses 1,063,122               3,157,761               
Adjustments for

 Loss (gain) on disposal of capital assets (32,562)                   1,109                      
Amortization of deferred contributions (4,151,394)              (4,351,620)              
Amortization of capital assets 4,362,621               4,531,577               

1,241,787               3,338,827               

Changes in non-cash working capital balances
Accounts receivable (4,228)                     577,714                  
Inventories 166,227                  (30,823)                   
Prepaid expenses (37,277)                   (287,164)                 
Marketable securities (154,465)                 (165,769)                 
Due to Manitoba Health (4,582,354)              2,518,243               
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,674,864               2,081,095               
Accrued vacation entitlement 525,908                  (106,287)                 

(169,538)                 7,925,836               
Cash Flows from Investing and Financing Activities

Increase in capital assets (13,983,704)            (4,326,867)              
Increase in deferred contributions 13,224,807             3,532,243               
Increase (decrease) in long-term debt (143,997)                 (133,189)                 
Increase in accrued retirement obligation 399,551                  411,618                  
Increase (decrease) in net assets 37,103                    334,594                  

(466,240)                 (181,601)                 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year (635,778)                 7,744,235               

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 18,285,357             10,541,122             

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 17,649,579           18,285,357             

Assiniboine Regional Health Authority
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended March 31, 2008

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
6
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Assiniboine Regional Health Authority 
 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the year ended March 31, 2008 
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1. Purpose of the organization 

The Assiniboine Regional Health Authority is a not-for-profit organization created by regulation 99/2002 under the 
Regional Health Authorities Act.  Through participation and teamwork, and available resources, the Assiniboine Regional 
Health Authority’s mission is to share in enhanced well-being through the delivery of quality health services that are 
responsive to the needs of the population. 

The organization is a registered charity and, as such, is exempt from income taxes and may issue income tax receipts to 
donors. 

2. Significant accounting policies 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for not-
for-profit organizations and include the following significant accounting policies: 

 

Revenue recognition 

The Authority follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions including government grants and donations. 
 
The Authority is funded primarily through grants from Manitoba Health.  Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the 
period to which they relate.  In accordance with funding arrangements with Manitoba Health, estimated final settlements 
are accrued in the fiscal period to which they relate.  Where a portion of a grant relates to a future period, it is deferred and 
recognized in that subsequent period. 
 
Where a grant or other restricted contribution is received but relates to expenses of one or more future periods, it is deferred 
and recognized as revenue in the same period as the related expenses are recognized.  Contributions restricted for the 
purchase of capital assets or to repay long-term debt as a lump sum are deferred and amortized into revenue at a rate 
corresponding with the amortization rate for the related capital assets. 

Contributed services 

A number of individuals donate significant amounts of time to the Authority’s activities.  No amount is reflected in the 
statements for donated services since no objective basis is available to measure the value of such services. 

Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.  Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out method. 

Capital assets 

Capital assets are initially recorded at cost.  Amortization is provided using the straight-line method at rates intended to 
amortize the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives. 

                               Method Rate 
Buildings  straight-line  10-40  years  
Equipment, computers, vehicles, ambulance equipment  straight-line  5-10  years  
Land improvements  straight-line  15  years  

 

Pre-retirement obligations 

The Authority applies the accounting recommendations for employee future benefits contained in Section 3461 of the 
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants' Handbook. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

Long-lived assets    

Long-lived assets consist of capital assets with finite useful lives.  Long-lived assets held for use are measured and amortized 
as described in the applicable accounting policies.   
 
The Authority performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying value of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable.  Impairment losses are recognized 
when undiscounted future cash flows from its use and disposal are less than the asset’s carrying amount.  Impairment is 
measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds its fair value.  Any impairment is included in operations 
for the year. 

Basis of consolidation 

The following entities have been consolidated into these financial statements as at March 31, 2008 respectively. 
 
Hamiota District Health Centre Inc. Lilac Residence (East Wing) 
Hamiota District Health Centre Inc. Lilac Residence (North Wing) 
Morley House of Shoal Lake Elderly Persons Housing 
Morley House of Shoal Lake Lakeshore Lodge 
Pioneer Lodge Inc. 
Riverdale Personal Care Home Inc. Westwood Lodge 
Tiger Hills Villa Inc. 
 
The financial statements of the above entities are prepared in accordance with the accounting principles required by 
Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation (MHRC).  The differences in accounting policies used by the above entities 
and Assiniboine Regional Health Authority would not result in significant changes to these consolidated financial 
statements. 

Financial information at different dates      

The following entities have been consolidated into these financial statements as at December 31, 2007: 

Baldur Handi-Van Service                                                                                                                                                                              
Hartney Handi-Transit                                                                                                                                                                                      
Tiger Hills Handi-Van Service  

These entities have not been reported as at March 31, 2008 due to the reporting requirements of their funding agency:  The 
Province of Manitoba – Department of Highways and Transportation.  There have been no significant transactions in the 
intervening period between December 31, 2007 and March 31, 2008, and their revenues and expenses for the three-month 
intervening period have not been prepared since these entities are not significant to the Assiniboine Regional Health 
Authority as a whole. 

Measurement uncertainty 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period.   

Page 1199



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Assiniboine Regional Health Authority 
 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the year ended March 31, 2008 

 

 
 
 9 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

Accounts receivable are stated after evaluation as to their collectibility and an appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts 
is provided where considered necessary.  Provisions are made for slow moving and obsolete inventory.  Amortization is 
based on the estimated useful lives of capital assets.  The accrued pre-retirement obligation and the accrued vacation 
entitlement liability are stated based on management estimates and actuarial valuations.  Changes to the underlying 
assumptions and estimates or legislative changes in the near term could have a material impact on the provision recognized. 

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary they are reported in 
operations in the periods in which they become known. 
 
Financial instruments 
 
In January 2005, the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants’ (“CICA”) issued new recommendations for the 
recognition and measurement of financial instruments, and amendments to the existing presentation and disclosure standards, 
effective for financial statements with fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2006.  On January 1, 2007, the 
Organization implemented these new standards, the main requirements of which are set out below: 
 
Held for trading: 
The Organization has classified the following financial assets and liabilities as held for trading: cash and marketable securities.  
These instruments are initially recognized at their fair value, determined by published bid price in an active market.  
Transactions to purchase or sell these items are recorded on the trade date, and transaction costs are immediately recognized in 
operations. 
 
Held for trading financial instruments are subsequently measured at their fair value determined by the bid price in an active 
market, without any deduction for transactions costs incurred on sale or other disposal.  Gains and losses arising from changes 
in fair value are recognized immediately in operations. 
 
Loans and receivables: 
The Organization has classified the following financial assets as loans and receivables: accounts receivable and Due from 
Manitoba Health.  These assets are initially recognized at their fair value approximated by the instrument’s initial cost in a 
transaction between unrelated parties.  Transactions to purchase or sell these items are recorded on the trade date, and 
transaction costs are immediately recognized in operations.   
 
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at their amortized cost, using the effective interest method.  Under this 
method, estimated future cash receipts are exactly discounted over the asset’s expected life, or other appropriate period, to its 
net carrying value.  Amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition less principal 
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that 
initial amount and the maturity amount, and less any reduction for impairment or uncollectability.  Gains and losses arising 
from changes in fair value are recognized in net operations upon derecognition or impairment. 
 
Other financial liabilities: 
The Organization has classified the following financial liabilities as other financial liabilities: accounts payable, accruals and 
Due to Manitoba Health.  These liabilities are initially recognized at their fair value approximated by the instrument’s initial 
cost in a transaction between unrelated parties.  Transactions to purchase or sell these items are recorded on the trade date, 
and transaction costs are immediately recognized in income.  Total interest expense, calculated using the effective interest 
rate method, is recognized in net operations.  Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized in net operations upon 
derecognition or impairment. 
 
Financial asset impairment: 
The Organization assesses impairment of all its financial assets, except those classified as held for trading.  Impairment is 
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying value and its fair value.  Any impairment, which is not considered 
temporary, is included in current year operations. 
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3. Accounts receivable 

  2008 2007 
   

 Trade receivables  1,946,289     2,018,421 
 GST receivable                  267,043         197,433 
 Allowance for doubtful accounts                 (149,496)        (156,246)

              2,063,836  
  

2,059,608 

 
4. Accrued vacation entitlement 

 
The liability for the accrued vacation entitlement, as well as, the appropriate amount receivable from Manitoba Health has been 
recorded.  Prior to April 1, 2004, deferred vacation entitlement costs were treated as Out-of-Globe by Manitoba Health.  Since 
that time, In-Globe funding has been amended to include these costs.  There will be an offsetting receivable from Manitoba 
Health only for the accumulated accrued vacation liability up to March 31, 2004.  As at March 31, 2008, the amount receivable 
is $6,484,052.  

 
  2008 2007 
   

Due to Assiniboine Regional Health Authority Employees               7,621,077  
  

7,095,169 
 
 

5. Accrued retirement obligations  

 

 2008 
  

2007 
   
Due to Members of the Health Employees Pension Plan and Members of the Civil 
Service Superannuation Plan 9,240,843    8,845,227 
Due to Diagnostic Services of Manitoba               40,999              37,064 
 9,281,842    8,882,291 

Pre-retirement  
The Authority's contractual commitment, based on an actuarial valuation, for the pre-retirement entitlement for members of 
the Health Employees Pension Plan is to pay out four days of salary for each year of service upon retirement if the 
employee complies with one of the following conditions:  
 
  i)    has ten years service and has reached the age of 55 or  
  ii)   qualifies for the "eighty" rule which is calculated by adding the number of years service to the age of the 
         employee or 
  iii)  retires at or after age 65 or  
  iv)  terminates employment at any time due to permanent disability  
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5. Accrued retirement obligations (continued) 

Pre-retirement (continued) 

The Authority's contractual commitment, based on an actuarial valuation, for the pre-retirement entitlement for MGEU 
Community Support members of the Civil Service Superannuation Plan, employed by the Authority on or before May 2, 
2003, is to pay out, at retirement to employees who have reached the age of 55 and have nine or more years of service, the 
following severance pay: 

i) one week of severance pay for each year of service up to 15 years of service. 
ii)  two weeks of additional severance pay for each increment of five years service past the 15 years of 

service up to 30 years of service. 

Funding for the retirement obligation is recoverable from Manitoba Health for pre-retirement costs incurred up to March 
31, 2004 on an Out-of-Globe basis in the year of payment.  As of April 1, 2004, In-Globe funding has been amended to 
include these costs.  The amount recorded as a receivable from the Province for pre-retirement costs was initially 
determined based on the value of the corresponding actuarial liability for pre-retirement costs as at March 31, 2004.   
 
Subsequent to March 31, 2004, the Province has included in its ongoing annual funding to the Authority, an amount 
equivalent to the change in the pre-retirement liability, which includes annual interest accretion related to the 
receivable.  The receivable will be paid by the Province when the Authority requires the funding to discharge the related 
pre-retirement liabilities.  As at March 31, 2008, the amount receivable is $7,336,760. 

Pension plans 
 
 Most of the employees of the Authority are members of the Health Employees Pension Plan (the “Plan”), which is a 

multi-employer defined benefit pension plan available to all eligible employees.  Plan members will receive benefits 
based on length of service and on the average annualized earnings calculated on the best five of the eleven consecutive 
years prior to retirement, termination or death, that provide the highest earnings.  The costs of the benefit plan are not 
allocated to the individual entities within the related group.  As a result, individual entities within the related group are not 
able to identify their share of the underlying assets and liabilities.  Therefore the Plan is accounted for as a defined 
contribution plan in accordance with the requirements of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants’ Handbook, 
Section 3461.    

 
 Pension assets consist of investment grade securities.  Market and credit risk on these securities are managed by the Plan 

by placing Plan assets in trust and through the Plan investment policy.  Pension expense is based on Plan management’s 
best estimates, in consultation with its actuaries, of the amount, together with the 6.6% of basic annual earnings up to the 
Canada Pension Plan ceiling contributed by employees, and 8.2% thereafter, required to provide a high level of assurance 
that benefits will be fully represented by fund assets at retirement, as provided by the Plan.  The funding objective is for 
employer contributions to the Plan to remain a constant percentage of employees’ contributions. 

  
 The December 2002 Health Employees Pension Plan (HEPP) actuarial valuation revealed that current contribution levels 
are insufficient to fund basic plan benefits, and do not make provisions for unexpected unfunded liabilities.  The HEPP 
Board had two options:  

i) to request a rate increase from the signatory boards and unions or  
ii) to reduce benefits.   

 
In January 2005, the Board proposed the contribution rate increases over three years, which was approved by the signatory 
unions and employers in mid April 2005.  The Plan's actuary review indicates that the approved contribution rate increases 
should be sufficient for the pension Plan to remain fully-funded at this time.    
  
Actual contributions to the Plan made during the year by the Authority on behalf of its employees amounted to 
$4,433,657 (2007 - $4,133,856) and are included in the statement of operations. 
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5. Accrued retirement obligations (continued) 

Pension plans (continued) 
 
Some of the employees of the Authority are eligible for membership in the provincially operated Civil Service 
Superannuation Plan.  The pension liability for Authority employees is included in the Province of Manitoba’s liability 
for Civil Service Superannuation Fund.  Accordingly, no provision is reflected in the financial statements relating to the 
effects of participating in the Plan by the Authority and its employees. 

  
6. Capital assets       

               2008 2007 
   Accumulated   Net Book   Net Book  
  Cost   Amortization   Value   Value  
 Land                 509,709                        -                509,709              510,225 
 Land improvements              1,412,828              747,356              665,472              595,407 
 Buildings            94,257,518          35,263,502        58,994,016         60,824,374 
 Equipment, computers, vehicles            16,295,131            8,457,726          7,837,405           9,600,335 
 Construction in progress            16,689,133                      -         16,689,133            3,544,311 
         129,164,319          44,468,584        84,695,735        75,074,652 

   

7. Due to Manitoba Health       

 
 2008  2007 
   
 Out-of-Globe 2003/2004          -  799,649 
 Out-of-Globe 2004/2005  -  1,328,406 
 Out-of-Globe 2005/2006 - 1,863,032 
 Out-of-Globe 2006/2007 (654,332) 1,357,857 
 Out-of-Globe 2007/2008  1,420,892 - 
  766,560 5,348,914 

 

In-Globe Funding    
   
 In-Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for Regional Health Authority programs unless otherwise 
specified as Out-of-Globe funding. This includes volume changes and price increases for the five service categories of 
Acute Care, Long-term Care, Community and Mental Health, Home Care and Emergency Response and Transport. All 
additional costs in these five service categories must be absorbed from within the global funding provided.    
 
Any operating surplus greater than 2% of budget related to In-Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of 
financial position as a payable to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At 
that time, Manitoba Health determines what portion of the approved surplus may be retained by the Authority, or repaid to 
Manitoba Health.    
 
Under Manitoba Health policy the Authority is responsible for In-Globe deficits, unless otherwise approved by Manitoba 
Health.  
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7. Due to Manitoba Health (continued) 

Out-of-Globe Funding 

   
Out-of-Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for specific programs.    
 
Any operating surplus related to Out-of-Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of financial position as a 
payable to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At that time Manitoba 
Health determines what portion of the approved surplus may be retained by the Authority, or repaid to Manitoba Health.  

Conversely, any operating deficit related to Out-of-Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of financial 
position as a receivable from Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At that 
time, Manitoba Health determines their final funding approvals, which indicate the portion of the deficit that will be paid to 
the Authority.  Any unapproved costs not paid by Manitoba Health are absorbed by the Authority. 

8. Long-term debt 

 2008 2007 
Mortgages payable to Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation at interest   
rates from 4.37% to 6.00%, due from December 1, 2013 to March 1, 2018, with    
monthly payments of principal and interest from $142 to $2,854, secured by   
buildings.             588,343         640,373 
   
Mortgages payable to Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation at interest   
rates from 7.75% to 10.75%, due from December 31, 2022 to December 31,     
2023, with monthly payments of principal and interest from $5,478 to $6,479    
secured by buildings.             1,169,929         1,205,924 
   
Mortgage payable to the Royal Bank of Canada, at 5.00%, monthly    
payments of $8,684 principal and interest, secured by a first charge against the   
Tiger Hills Villa land and buildings, a general assignment of all rents and   
leases and a chattel mortgage covering the appliances in the Tiger Hills Villa.            926,256         982,228 
    
         2,684,528        2,828,525 
 Less:  current portion               153,290             144,394 
          2,531,238        2,684,131 

 
 

   
 Principal repayments for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:  
   
  2009                  153,290  
  2010                  162,745  
  2011                  172,873  
  2012                  183,695  
  2013                  195,308  
  Thereafter               1,816,617  
            2,684,528  
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8. Long-term debt (continued) 

In prior years, the Authority entered into long-term loan agreements with various financial institutions to provide debt 
financing to the Authority. The Province of Manitoba continues to pay the principal and interest on this long-term debt. During 
the 2005 fiscal year, this long-term debt was assumed by the Province of Manitoba and was recognized as borrowings in the 
Public Accounts (Special Purpose Financial Statements) of the Province of Manitoba as at April 1, 2004.    
    
Accordingly, since the Province of Manitoba has recognized the long-term debt as its borrowings, the Authority has restated 
the long-term debt as deferred contributions in its financial statements.   

9. Deferred contributions  

Expended and unexpended deferred contributions represent restricted capital funding received.  
 
Expended deferred contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount of funds received for the 
purchase of capital assets and the repayment of capital debt.  The amortization of capital deferred contributions is recorded 
as revenue in the statement of operations.  
 
Unexpended deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods represent unspent externally restricted grants for 
equipment, major repairs, construction and other expenses.   

Other deferred contributions represent donations that were received from other sources restricted by site or by program for 
the purchase of capital assets or other items, as per the donor’s request.  

Changes in the deferred contributions balance are as follows: 

 
  Expended   Unexpended  Other  2008 2007 
      

 Balance, beginning of year     68,934,292       3,887,610      2,815,333    75,637,235 
  

76,456,612 
      
Funding Manitoba Health          106,540      1,539,260                 -       1,645,800   5,958,450 
Donations received  -                      -   3,924,513       3,924,513      945,475 
Interest earned  -            10,791      111,411          122,202       135,155 
Other funding  - 1,229,498        -  1,229,498 1,559,096 
Capital asset purchases  13,723,394 (1,090,118) (914,100) 11,719,176    2,026,370 
Operating expenses  (972)  (2,066,526) (3,126,336)   (5,193,834) (2,236,587) 
Amortization  (4,000,873)     -    -  (4,000,873) (4,206,634) 
Principal payments on long term debt                    -     (348,738)      -   (348,738) (4,597,951) 
Transferred to Municipalities - - (4,461) (4,461) - 
Reclassification  -        (27,870)    8,000      (19,870)  (402,751) 

 Balance, end of year      78,762,381       3,133,907       2,814,360     84,710,648 
  

75,637,235 
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9. Deferred contributions (continued) 

The lines of credit and long-term debt that have been incorporated in deferred contributions include the following: 

 2008  2007 
   
 Lines of credit     11,304,920   1,784,658 
   
 Mortgages payable to Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation at interest rates from    
 4.17% to 10.50%, due from January 1, 2009 to May 1, 2029, with monthly payments of     
 principal and interest from $1,368 to $5,718, secured by buildings 5,785,117  6,095,185 
   
   
   17,090,037   7,879,843 

Lines of Credit 

The Authority has authorized capital lines of credit of $28,885,921 and has authorized $5,800,000 of an operating line of credit.  
These lines of credit bear interest at the bank's prime rate minus 0.65%. Security provided on these lines of credit includes an 
overdraft borrowing agreement and a letter of comfort from Manitoba Health.   
 

10. Commitments and contingencies       

  The nature of the health care industry's activities is such that there is usually litigation pending or in prospect at any time. 
With respect to claims at March 31, 2008 management believes the Authority has valid defenses and appropriate insurance 
coverage in place. In the event any claims are successful, management believes that such claims are not expected to have a 
material effect on the Authority's financial position.  

  On July 1, 1987, a group of health care organizations, ("subscribers"), formed Healthcare Insurance Reciprocal of Canada 
("HIROC"). HIROC is registered as a Reciprocal pursuant to provincial Insurance Acts, which permit person’s reciprocal 
contracts of the indemnity insurance. HIROC facilitates the provision of liability insurance coverage to health care 
organizations in the provinces of Ontario, Manitoba, Saskatchewan and Newfoundland.  Subscribers pay annual premiums, 
which are actuarially determined, and are subject to assessment for losses in excess of such premiums, of any losses 
experienced by the group of subscribers for the years in which they were a subscriber. As of December 31, 2005, the 
Authority has a subscriber’s surplus of $229,894.  No such assessments have been made to December 31, 2007. 

Environmental Liabilities 
 

In accordance with accounting policy of the Province of Manitoba, the Authority has no known environmental liabilities for 
contaminated sites for which the Authority will become obligated to incur remediation costs due to reasons of public health and 
safety, contractual agreements, or to meet such standards which are set out in any act or regulation of government. 
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11. Invested in capital assets 

 2008  2007 
   
 Capital Assets             84,695,735             75,074,652 
 Amounts financed by:    

 Deferred contributions related to capital assets           (78,762,381)          (68,934,292) 
 Long-term debt             (2,684,528)            (2,828,525) 
 Due from operating account                  26,364                  25,032 
     

   
        3,275,190      3,336,867 

12. Internally restricted net assets 

The Authority has restricted $210,746 (2007 - $247,481) in net assets as this represents parking proceeds.  The funds have 
been internally restricted for future repair or replacement of Health Centre parking lots.  
 

13. Manitoba Health operating income 

 2008                    2007 
   
 Revenue as per Manitoba Health's final funding document      128,437,919  121,499,011 
   
 Add:    

 CUPE wage standardization               1,488,934                  646,313 
 CUPE wage settlement                   -                    10,060   
 MGEU community support special adjustment                   -                   175,131 
 MGEU professional technical market supplement                 278,211                108,236   
 MNU market supplement                  422,196                  - 
 MAHCP wage settlement 18,807 - 
 Primary Health Care Phase 2                          -                   16,000 
 Primary Health Care nurses salaries and benefits                  240,846                       - 
 Admission / discharge / transfer software                    59,476                    58,705 
 Minnedosa arthroscopy program - wait list                  210,387                  229,400   
 Rivers rehabilitation program - wait list                   206,300   206,300   
 Deloraine cancer care program - wait list 22,343 - 
 Provincial data network                    12,023                    57,601   
Interfacility transfers  1,026,110 264,581 
Mental health worker 83,600 83,600 
Pandemic planning - 100,000 
Pre-retirement leave - 798,672 
Louis Riel Day statutory holiday 365,036 - 
Services for Seniors group living project 7,590 - 
Diabetes education pre-diabetes project 3,584 - 

   
           4,445,443             2,754,599 
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13. Manitoba Health operating income (continued) 

 2008                    2007 
 Continued from previous page          4,445,443             2,754,599 
 Deduct:    

 Medical remuneration - out-of-globe             (3,747,810)            (2,380,575) 
 Medical remuneration - in-globe (390,401) - 
 Adjustments (rounding variances, write-offs, etc.)                           31                    (2) 

   
            (4,138,180)           (2,380,577) 
   
Total funding approved by Manitoba Health          128,745,182           121,873,033 
   
 Deduct:    

 Capital funding             (1,048,451)            (1,536,015) 
 Capital interest on loans             (325,986)            (546,021) 

     127,370,745        119,790,997 

 

 14. Economic dependence      

Assiniboine Regional Health Authority receives a substantial portion of its revenue from Manitoba Health.  

 

15. Comparative figures 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified, if necessary, to conform with the current year presentation. 

 

16. Related party transactions 

The Authority is responsible for the overall management of the health care services provided in the Assiniboine region.  
Programs for hospital and personal care services are delivered in the region by the Authority.  The Authority transacts 
business on a regular basis with organizations and agencies described in Notes 2, 4, 5, 7, 9 and 13.   

As part of a transfer agreement between Diagnostic Services of Manitoba and the Authority, assets with a net book value of 
$1,596,585 were transferred to Diagnostic Services of Manitoba for no cash proceeds.   
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17. Change in accounting policy 
 
Effective April 1, 2007, the Authority adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants’ new recommendations for the 
recognition and measurement of financial instruments, Section 3861, and amendments to the existing presentation and 
disclosure standards, as described in Note 2.  
 
CICA 1530 Comprehensive Income establishes standards for reporting and displaying certain gains and losses, such as 
unrealized gains and losses related to cash flow hedges or available-for-sale financial assets, outside of net income, in a 
statement of comprehensive income (loss).  Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in equity of the 
Organization arising from transactions and other events and circumstances, except those resulting from owner investment and 
distribution.  Accumulated comprehensive income (loss) is separately disclosed as a component of equity. 
 
Although the requirements of CICA 1530 Comprehensive Income are not applicable for not-for-profit organizations, 
amendments to CICA 4400 Not-For-Profit Organizations require presentation of gains, losses, revenues and expenses arising 
from derivatives, hedges and other financial instruments as separate components of the change in net assets.   
 
The Authority had no items requiring reclassification to net assets. 
 

18. New Accounting pronouncements 
 
Capital disclosures and financial instruments – disclosure and presentation 
 
On April 1, 2008, the Authority will adopt three new CICA Handbook sections:  Section 1535 Capital Disclosures, Section 
3862 Financial Instruments – Disclosures, and Section 3863 Financial Instruments – Presentation.  Section 1535 requires 
disclosure of an entity’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital; information about what the entity regards as 
capital; whether the entity has complied with any capital requirements; and the consequences of not complying with these 
capital requirements.  Sections 3862 and 3863 replace Handbook Section 3861, Financial Instruments – Disclosure and 
Presentation.  Section 3863 carries forward unchanged with the presentation requirements of Section 3861 while 3862 requires 
enhanced financial instruments and how the entity manages those risks.  The Authority will apply the new disclosures in its 
2009 financial statements. 
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE 
HOME 
Statement of Financial Position 
 
March 31, 2008, with comparative figures for 2007 
 

  2008 2007 
   (Restated, 
   note 3) 

Assets 
 
Current assets: 

Cash $ 216,594 $ 199,754 
Accounts receivable 25,672 7,564 
Inventory 29,421 25,224 
Prepaid expenses 5,087 4,669 
Employee benefits recoverable from Brandon Regional  

Health Authority (note 6) 190,916 190,916 
  467,690 428,127 

 
Employee future benefits recoverable from Brandon Regional 

Health Authority (note 6) 199,105 199,105 
 
Cash held for restricted purposes (note 3(c)) 176,168 145,389 
 
Resident trust deposits  15,872 6,107 
 
Property, plant and equipment (note 5)  2,241,360 2,356,263 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  $ 3,100,195 $ 3,134,991 
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  2008 2007 
   (Restated, 
   note 3) 

Liabilities, Deferred Contributions and Net Assets 
 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 208,075 $ 118,199 
Accrued vacation payable (note 6)  210,702  211,820 
Current portion of long-term debt 103,420 97,474 
Due to Brandon Regional Health Authority (note 4) 58,329 20 

  580,526 427,513 
 
Accrued pre-retirement entitlement obligation (note 6): 273,862 273,636 
 
Long-term debt (note 8) 1,756,252 1,860,948 
 
Resident trust accounts payable  15,465 6,331 
 
Deferred contributions (note 7): 

Expenses of future periods  35,987 86,175 
Property, plant and equipment 254,281 258,162 
  290,268 344,337 

 
Net assets: 

Invested in property, plant and equipment (note 9)  82,859 90,866 
Internally restricted 182,225 176,602 
Unrestricted (81,262) (45,242) 
  183,822 222,226 

 
  $ 3,100,195 $ 3,134,991 

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of the Home: 

_____________________________  Executive Director 

 

_____________________________  Director of Business 
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE 
HOME 
Statement of Operations 
 
Year ended March 31, 2008, with comparative figures for 2007 
 

  2008 2007 
   (Restated, 
   note 3) 
Revenue: 

Brandon Regional Health Authority (note 10) $ 2,695,181 $ 2,535,890 
Residential charges 841,086 829,640 
Other income   17,463 18,771 
  3,553,730 3,384,301 

 
Amortization of deferred contributions 196,843 142,994 
Total revenue 3,750,573 3,527,295 
 
Expenses: 

Salaries 2,497,470 2,344,619 
Employee benefits 445,187 428,497 
Health and education levy 52,238 49,414 
Other supplies and expenses 426,120 396,355 
Physical plant 216,931 153,050 
Interest (note 8) 32,961 34,164 
Amortization of property, plant and equipment  128,049 134,926 
  3,798,956 3,541,025 

 
Deficiency of revenue over expenses on operations  (48,383)  (13,730) 
 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses - contributed 

services 9,979 (19,788) 
 
Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (38,404) $ (33,518) 

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE 
HOME 
Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
 
Year ended March 31, 2008, with comparative figures for 2007 
 

  Invested in    
  property, plant Internally  Total Total 
  and equipment restricted Unrestricted 2008 2007 
 
Balance, beginning of year,  

as previously reported $ 134,738 $ –    $ (89,114) $ 45,624 $ 44,884 
 
Change in accounting policy 

(note 3(c)) (43,872) 176,602 43,872 176,602 210,860  
Balance, beginning of year, as 

restated 90,866 176,602 (45,242) 222,226 255,744 
 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue  

over expenses –    9,979 (48,383) (38,404) (33,518) 
 
Transfer between funds (8,007) (4,356) 12,363 –    –    
 
Balance, end of year $ 82,859 $ 182,225 $ (81,262) $ 183,822 $ 222,226 

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE 
HOME 
Notes to Financial Statements  
 
Year ended March 31, 2008 
 

 

Purpose of organization: 

The Salvation Army Dinsdale Personal Care Home (the Home) provides long-term care in the 

community of Brandon. The Home is owned and operated by The Governing Council of the Salvation 

Army in Canada pursuant to the Province of Manitoba Acts and Regulations governing supervisory 

and personal care homes, and licensed under the provisions of the Brandon Regional Health Authority 

(BRHA). In addition, the Home carries out the charitable, educational, religious and other benevolent 

objects and purposes of the Salvation Army. The Home is a registered charity under the Income Tax 

Act and accordingly is exempt from income taxes. 

1. Continuity of operations: 

At March 31, 2008, the Home’s current liabilities exceed its current assets by $112,836. The 

Home also had an unrestricted net asset deficiency of $81,262 (2007 - $45,242) at March 31, 

2008 due mainly as a result of operating losses in fiscal 2008 and prior. 

The ability of the Home to continue as a going concern, to realize the carrying value of its assets 

and to discharge its liabilities when due is dependent on the Home continuing to operate at a 

break-even or surplus position in future years, and the continued support of the Brandon 

Regional Health Authority. 

2. Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Basis of presentation: 

The accounts are maintained on the accrual method of reporting income and expenses. 

(b) Revenue recognition: 

The Home follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Restricted 

contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are 

incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable 

if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably 

assured. Contributions restricted for the purchase of property, plant and equipment are 

deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis, at a rate corresponding with 

the amortization rate for the related property, plant and equipment. 

The Home is funded primarily by the Province of Manitoba in accordance with budget 

arrangements established by BRHA. Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the 

period to which they relate. Grants approved but not received at the end of a period are 

accrued. Where a portion of a grant relates to a future period, it is deferred and recognized 

in that subsequent period. 
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE 
HOME 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2008 
 

 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(c) Property, plant and equipment: 

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Contributed property, plant and 

equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of contribution. Repairs and maintenance 

costs are charged to expense.  Betterments which extend the estimated useful life of an 

asset are capitalized.  When an asset no longer contributes to the Home’s ability to provide 

services, its carrying amount is written down to its residual value. Capital assets are 

amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the assets: 
 

Asset   Term 
 
Building  40 years 
Equipment and furnishings  5 - 10 years 
Computer equipment  5 years 
 

 

(d) Operating fund surpluses: 

Approved operating fund surpluses are repayable to the BRHA. 

(e) Pre-retirement entitlement obligation: 

The Home has a contractual commitment to pay out to employees four days salary per year 

of service upon retirement subject to meeting certain criteria: 

• have ten years service and have reached the age of 55 or 

• qualify for the “eighty” rule which is calculated by adding the number of years service to 

the age of the employee. 

The Home has recorded an accrual based on an actuarial valuation that includes 

employees who qualify at the year end balance sheet date and an estimate for the 

remainder of the employees who have not yet met the criteria above. 

(f) Employee future benefits recoverable from BRHA: 

Funding for vacation entitlement and pre-retirement obligations is provided by Manitoba 

Health through BRHA as part of its regular budget in the period in which the expenditures 

are made. Vacation entitlements and pre-retirement entitlements that will be funded by 

BRHA have been recorded in the statement of financial position as recoverable from BRHA. 
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE 
HOME 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2008 
 

 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(g) Internally restricted net assets: 

Internally restricted net assets represent funds which have been received through donations 

or from the Salvation Army and whose use has been internally restricted by the Home. 

(h) Statement of cash flows: 

A statement of cash flows has not been provided as it would not provide any further 

information to the users of the financial statements. 

(i) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of 

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 

amounts of revenues and expenses during the year.  Actual results could differ from those 

estimates. 

(j) Financial instruments: 

Interest rate risk: 

Interest rate risk is the risk to the Home’s earnings that arises from fluctuations in interest 

rates and the degree of volatility of these rates. The Home does not use derivative 

instruments to reduce this risk. 

Credit risk: 

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counterparty will fail to perform its obligations.  

However, most of the Home’s accounts receivable are amounts due from government 

funding authorities, which minimizes credit risk. 

Fair value: 

The fair value of cash, cash held for restricted purposes, accounts receivable, accounts 

payable and accrued liabilities and accrued vacation payable approximate their carrying 

value due to their short-term maturity. 
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE 
HOME 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2008 
 

 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(k) New accounting standards: 

On December 31, 2006, the CICA issued three new accounting standards: Handbook 

Section 1535 - Capital Disclosures, Handbook Section 3862 - Financial Instruments - 

Disclosures, and Handbook Section 3863 - Financial Instruments - Presentation. These new 

standards become effective for the Home on April 1, 2008. 

Section 1535 specifies the disclosure of: (i) an entity’s objectives, policies and procedures 

and process for managing capital; (ii) quantitative date about what the entity regards as 

capital; (iii) whether the entity has complied with any capital requirements; and (iv) if it has 

not complied, the consequences of such non-compliance. 

Section 3862 and 3863 replace Handbook Section 3861 - Financial Instruments - 

Disclosure and Presentation, revising and enhancing its disclosure requirements, and 

carrying forward unchanged its presentation requirements. These new sections place 

increased emphasis on disclosures about the nature and extent of risks arising from 

financial instruments and how the entity manages those risks. 

The Home is currently assessing the impact that these new standards will have on its 

financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2009. 

3. Changes in accounting policies: 

(a) Financial instruments: 

The Home adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook 

Section 3855, Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement, on April 1, 2007. 

This standard provides guidance on recognizing financial instruments and non-financial 

derivatives on the statement of financial position. The standard also specifies how financial 

instrument gains and losses are presented. Initially, all financial assets and liabilities must 

be recorded on the statement of financial position at fair value. Subsequent measurement is 

determined by the classification of each financial asset and liability. Under this standard, all 

financial instruments are classified as one of the following five categories: (a) held-for-

trading; (b) loans and receivables; (c) held-to-maturity; (d) available-for-sale or (e) other 

liabilities. Financial assets and liabilities held-for-trading are measured at fair value with 

gains and losses recognized in excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses. Financial 

instruments classified as held-to-maturity, loans and receivables and other liabilities are 

measured at amortized cost. Available-for-sale financial instruments are measured at fair 

value, with unrealized gains and losses recognized directly in net assets. 
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE 
HOME 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2008 
 

 

3. Changes in accounting policies (continued): 

Upon adoption of this new standard, the Home designated cash and cash held for restricted 

purposes as held-for-trading; resident trust deposits, accounts receivable, employee future 

benefits recoverable from BRHA as loans and receivables; and accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities, resident trust accounts payable, due to BRHA and long-term debt as 

other liabilities. The Home does not have held-to-maturity or available-for-sale financial 

instruments. 

Except for held-for-trading designated financial instruments, transaction costs that are 

directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets or liabilities are 

accounted for as part of the respective asset or liability’s carrying value at inception and 

amortized over the expected life of the financial instrument using the effective interest rate 

method. For held-for-trading financial assets and liabilities, transaction costs are recorded in 

the statement of operations as incurred. 

There was no transitional adjustment at April 1, 2007 as a result of adoption of this 

standard. There was no impact on the Home’s reported results for fiscal 2008. In 

accordance with the standard, prior periods are not restated. 

(b) Presentation of long-term debt: 

During fiscal 2008, the Home changed its accounting policy for the treatment of long-term 

debt issued by third parties that is secured by a letter of comfort from Manitoba Health. In 

previous periods, the Home had presented such debt as deferred contributions, and loans 

are now presented separately on the statement of financial position as long-term debt. 

Management has determined that the new policy is preferable because it better reflects the 

third party nature of this debt. Prior periods have been restated.  

The impact of the change on the statement of financial position was to: 

• reduce deferred contributions by $1,859,672 as at March 31, 2008 and $1,958,425 as 

at March 31, 2007  

• increase current portion of long-term debt by $103,420 as at March 31, 2008 and 

$97,474 as at March 31, 2007 

• increase long-term debt by $1,756,252 as at March 31, 2008 and $1,860,948 as at 

March 31, 2007.  
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE 
HOME 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2008 
 

 

3. Changes in accounting policies (continued): 

The impact of the change on the statement of operations was to increase both revenue 

from the BRHA and interest expense by $32,961 for the year ended March 31, 2008, and by 

$34,164 for the year ended March 31, 2007. 

This change in presentation had no impact on net assets or results of operations for any 

period presented.  

(c) Contributed Services and Donation Fund: 

In prior years, the Home had presented assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses related to 

contributed services and its Donation Fund in separate financial statements. 

In order to comply with the presentation preferred by the Salvation Army and to better reflect 

the complete operations of the Home, these items are now included within these financial 

statements. Prior periods have been restated. 

The impact of the change on the statement of financial position was to: 

• eliminate receivable from Salvation Army of $38,402 as at March 31, 2008 and $17,597 

as at March 31, 2007 

• recognize cash held for restricted purposes of $176,168 as at March 31, 2008 and 

$145,389 as at March 31, 2007 

• increase property, plant and equipment by $44,459 as at March 31, 2008 and $48,810 

as at March 31, 2007 

• increase internally restricted net assets by $182,225 as at March 31, 2008 and 

$176,602 as at March 31, 2007 

• reallocate $43,872 from "Invested in property, plant and equipment" to "Unrestricted net 

assets" as at March 31, 2007. 

The impact of the change on the statement of operations was to: 

• increase amortization of property, plant and equipment by $4,262 in each of the years 

ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 

• record excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses - contributed services for the 

years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 of $9,979 and $(19,788), respectively. 
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE 
HOME 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2008 
 

 

4. Due to Brandon Regional Health Authority: 

 

  2008 2007 
 
Funding advances from BRHA $ 115,402 $ 2,000 
Amounts receivable from BRHA (57,073) (1,980) 

 
  $ 58,329 $ 20 

 

Funding advances received from BRHA are unsecured and non-interest bearing. 

5. Property, plant and equipment: 

 

 2008 2007 
  Accumulated Net book Net book 
  Cost amortization value value 
 
Land $ 133,615 $ –    $ 133,615 $ 133,615 
Buildings 4,218,593 2,145,682 2,072,911 2,200,790 
Equipment and furnishings 570,058 535,224 34,834 21,858 
 
 $ 4,922,266 $ 2,680,906 $ 2,241,360 $ 2,356,263 

 

Title to the Home’s land and buildings is held by the Governing Council of the Salvation Army, 

which owns and operates the Home. 

6. Employee benefits: 

(a) Vacation payable: 

The BRHA funds a portion of the vacation pay benefits of the Home, which is limited to the 

amount established at March 31, 2004 of $190,916. This amount is included in employee 

benefits recoverable from BRHA in the statement of financial position. Each year the Home 

is expected to fund the change in the liability from its annual funding. 

(b) Pre-retirement entitlement obligation: 

The Home has undertaken an actuarial valuation as of March 31, 2008 of the accrued pre-

retirement entitlement obligation. The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in 

measuring the Home’s accrued pre-retirement entitlement obligation include mortality and 

withdrawal rates, a discount rate of 5.50 percent (2007 - 4.85 percent), a rate of salary 

increase of 3.5 percent (2007 - 3.0 percent) plus age related merit/promotion scale and a 

factor ranging from 0 - 1.31 percent (2007 - 0 - 1.30 percent) for disability.  
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE 
HOME 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2008 
 

 

6. Employee benefits (continued): 

The amount of funding which will be provided by BRHA for these pre-retirement benefits of 

$199,105 was initially determined based on the accrued pre-retirement entitlement 

obligation at March 31, 2004, and was recorded as employee future benefits recoverable 

from BRHA. The Home is responsible for funding the pre-retirement entitlement obligation 

accumulated after March 31, 2004, including the interest accretion, through its annual 

funding from BRHA. 

The employee future benefits recoverable from BRHA has no specified terms of repayment. 

The fair value of the employee future benefits recoverable from BRHA approximates its 

carrying value as the interest component described above is comparable to current market 

rates. 

7. Deferred contributions: 

(a) Expenses of future periods: 

Deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods represent unspent externally 

restricted funds for major repairs: 
 

  2008 2007 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 86,175 $ 77,521 
 
Add funding received in current year 18,840 18,840 
Less major repairs (69,028) (10,186) 
  (50,188) 8,654 
 
Balance, end of year $ 35,987 $ 86,175 

 

(b) Property, plant and equipment: 

Deferred capital contributions related to property, plant and equipment represent the 

unamortized amount and unspent amount of donations and grants received for the 

purchase of capital assets and replacement of equipment. The amortization of deferred 

capital contributions is recorded as revenue in the statement of operations. 
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE 
HOME 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2008 
 

 

7. Deferred contributions (continued): 

 

  2008 2007 
   (Restated, 

  note 3) 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 258,162 $ 276,945 
 
Add:  

Payments of mortgage principal (note 9) 98,751 90,951 
Major equipment funding 23,600 18,047 
Other 1,583 5,027 

Less:  
Amounts amortized to revenue (127,815) (132,808) 

  (3,881) (18,783) 
 
Balance, end of year $ 254,281 $ 258,162 

 

The Home has an outstanding loan of $348,749 (2007 - $380,595) payable to the Province 

of Manitoba. The Province has committed to fund payments of interest and principal on this 

loan, but does so directly, and does not include these amounts in funding provided directly 

to the Home. As the Province is funding the payment of principal and interest directly, the 

loan is not presented as a separate liability on the statement of financial position, but was 

recognized as an increase in deferred capital contributions when first incurred. 

8. Long-term debt: 

 

  2008 2007 
 
Canada Mortgage Housing Corporation, mortgage 

payable, interest at 4.31%, repayable $15,058  
monthly interest and principal, maturing 2021 $ 1,859,672 $ 1,958,422 

 
Current portion  (103,420)  (97,474) 
 
  $ 1,756,252 $ 1,860,948 

 

The Province of Manitoba, via the BRHA, provides funding for all payments of principal (note 

7(b)) and interest on this debt. 
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE 
HOME 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended March 31, 2008 
 

 

9. Invested in property, plant and equipment: 

 

  2008 2007 
 
Property, plant and equipment $ 2,241,360 $ 2,356,263 
Amounts financed by: 

Deferred contributions (254,281) (258,162) 
Long-term debt (1,859,672) (1,958,422) 

Relating to capital assets within internally restricted funds (44,548) (48,813) 
 

  $ 82,859 $ 90,866 

 

10. Revenue - Brandon Regional Health Authority: 

 

  2008 2007 
 
Total approved funding $ 2,836,373 $ 2,663,727 
 
Less funding allocated to deferred contributions: 

Equipment  (23,600)  (18,047) 
Major repairs (18,840) (18,840) 
Mortgage principal (98,752) (90,950) 
 

Funding for operations $ 2,695,181 $ 2,535,890 

 

11. Pension plan: 

Substantially all of the employees of the Home are members of the Healthcare Employees 

Pension Plan - Manitoba (the Plan), which is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan 

available to all eligible employees of the participating facilities. Plan members will receive 

benefits based on their length of service and on their average of annualized earnings calculated 

on the best five of the eleven consecutive years prior to retirement, termination, or death, that 

provide the highest earnings. The costs of the benefit plan are not allocated to the individual 

facilities. As a result, individual participating facilities are not able to identify their share of the 

underlying assets and liabilities and, accordingly, the Plan is accounted for as a defined 

contribution plan. 

Variances between actuarial funding estimates and actual experience may be material and any 

differences are generally to be funded by the participating members. The most recent actuarial 

valuation of the Plan as at December 31, 2006 indicates the Plan is fully funded. Contributions 

to the Plan made during the year by the Home on behalf of its employees amounted to 

$279,933 (2007 - $261,629) and are included in the statement of operations. 

Page 1243



THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE 
HOME 
Expenses  Schedule A 
 
Year ended March 31, 2008, with comparative figures for 2007 
 

  2008 2007 
 
Salaries: 

Activity $ 75,264 $ 77,082 
Administration 130,921 134,128 
Dieticians 277,253 263,415 
Housekeeping 143,942 137,390 
In-service director  27,293 22,513 
Laundry 57,924 52,962 
Nursing 1,670,556 1,540,910 
Physical plant and equipment 114,317 116,219 
 

  $ 2,497,470 $ 2,344,619 

 
Employee benefits $ 445,187 $ 428,497 
 

 
Health and education levy $ 52,238 $ 49,414 
 

 
Other supplies and expenses: 

Activity 2,766 2,619 
Drug capitation expense 26,317 25,839 
Administration 62,229 54,304 
Housekeeping 17,520 18,030 
In-service education 750 2,860 
Laundry and linen 73,522 62,443 
Nursing 81,811 74,752 
Miscellaneous –    2,366 
Nutritional services 118,617 117,433 
Plant maintenance 42,588 35,709 
 

  $ 426,120 $ 396,355 

 
Physical plant: 

Heat and lights 73,075 75,378 
Insurance 2,434 3,549 
Property taxes 48,914 43,644 
Water and sewer 23,703 20,292 
Major repairs 68,805 10,187 
 

  $ 216,931 $ 153,050 
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE 
HOME 
Contributed Services  Schedule B 
 
Year ended March 31, 2008, with comparative figures for 2007 
 

  2008 2007 
 
Revenue: 

Donations $ 19,910 $ 8,991 
Ministry grant 60,000 60,000 
Interest 12,250 11,090 
Miscellaneous 28,579 5,071 
Red Shield 15,000 20,000 
Travel recoveries 7,874 2,214 
DHQ/THQ grant 45,000 10,000 
  188,613 117,366 

 
Expenses: 

Administrator - wages and benefits 61,256 58,720 
Automotive 16,322 15,444 
Chaplaincy services 346 393 
Child sponsorship and special projects –    700 
Christmas 3,836 3,745 
Conferences and travel 11,431 9,406 
Residence repairs 9,071 5,823 
Miscellaneous 23,292 18,694 
Supervision levy remitted 50,314 21,420 
Utilities 2,766 2,809 
  178,634 137,154 

 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ 9,979 $ (19,788) 
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BDO Dunwoody LLP is a Limited Liability Partnership registered in Ontario
BDO Dunwoody s.r.l. est une société à responsabilité limitée constituée en Ontario

2

BDO Dunwoody LLP/s.r.l.
Chartered Accountants and Advisors
Comptables agréés et conseillers

700 - 200 Graham Avenue
Winnipeg  Manitoba  Canada  R3C 4L5
Telephone/Téléphone: (204) 956-7200
Fax/Télécopieur: (204) 926-7201
Toll Free/Sans frais: 1-800-268-3337
www.bdo.ca

Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors of
INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.:

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of INTERLAKE REGIONAL
HEALTH AUTHORITY INC. as at March 31, 2008 and the consolidated statements of operations,
changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Authority's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Authority as at March 31, 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Chartered Accountants

Winnipeg, Manitoba
May 27, 2008
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

March 31 2008 2007

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and term deposits $ 4,445,500 $ 4,861,818
Accounts receivable 1,218,437 1,453,709
Due from Manitoba Health (Note 3) 2,261,548 1,346,816
Inventories 741,247 809,372
Prepaid expense 606,251 735,401
Vacation entitlements receivable (Note 4) 3,688,400 3,688,400

12,961,383 12,895,516

Retirement obligations receivable (Note 12) 4,183,222 4,183,222

Other assets 110,637 123,928

Capital assets (Note 5) 44,546,225 46,181,128

$ 61,801,467 $ 63,383,794

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

March 31 2008 2007

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 6,605,002  $ 5,821,435
Accrued vacation entitlements (Note 4) 4,570,645 4,426,132
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 7) 50,338 47,529

11,225,985 10,295,096

Accrued retirement obligations  (Note 12) 5,475,722 5,462,445

Due to Betel Home Foundation (Note 13) 58,600 117,200

Long-term debt (Note 7) 534,432 585,077

Deferred Contributions (Note 8)
Expenses of future periods 1,463,312 1,575,237
Capital assets 40,840,993 42,360,995

42,304,305 43,936,232

Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)

Net Assets
Investment in capital assets (Note 9) 3,120,462 3,187,527
Externally restricted (Note 15) 726,442 741,445
Internally restricted (Note 15) 208,145 206,953
Unrestricted - RHA  (2,214,129)   (1,175,756)
Unrestricted - Contract Facilities 361,503 27,575

2,202,423 2,987,744

$ 61,801,467  $ 63,383,794

Page 1294

dhalilagic
Stamp



INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the year ended March 31 2008 2007

Revenue
Province of Manitoba
    Health (Note 10) $ 90,175,829 $ 83,733,578
    Client Non-Insured 5,630,591 5,346,212
Interest 214,113 286,767
Offset and other income 2,433,938 2,691,197
Ancillary income 185,597 186,931
Amortization of deferred contributions 2,800,280 2,612,418

101,440,348 94,857,103

Expenditures
Acute care services 26,726,049 25,607,922
Amortization of capital assets 2,838,955 2,651,172
Ancillary operations operating expenditures 126,541 114,630
Chemotherapy 245,507 232,781
Community health 8,951,021 8,215,402
Home based care 11,200,219 10,739,888
Diagnostic services 6,595,879 5,966,201
Dialysis 1,047,341 814,565
Emergency response and transport 6,262,000 5,214,995
Long-term care services 22,623,922 21,387,262
Mental health services 4,313,833 4,069,404
Medical remuneration 7,452,201 6,944,607
Nurse recruitment and retention 49,371 60,599
Regional undistributed expenditures 3,497,784 2,971,384
Safety and renovations 226,761 317,806

102,157,384 95,308,618

Deficiency of revenue over
     expenditures before other item (717,036) (451,515)

Other Item
Retirement obligation funding 2005/2006 (Note 10) - 96,905

Deficiency of revenue
            over expenditures for the year $ (717,036) $ (354,610)

Allocated as follows:
  Regional services $ (1,055,515) $ (416,859)
  Contracted services 338,479 62,249

$ (717,036) $ (354,610)

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
5
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended March 31 2008 2007

Investment in  Externally Internally Unrestricted
Capital Assets Restricted Restricted Unrestricted - Contract

(Note 9) (Note 15) (Note 15) - RHA Facilities Total Total

Balance, beginning of year $ 3,187,527 $ 741,445 $ 206,953 $ (1,175,756) $ 27,575 $ 2,987,744 $ 3,306,809

Reallocation of interest earned on donation
and externally restricted funds - 31,282 39,192 (70,474) - - -

Change in externally restricted net assets - (30,285) (38,000) - - (68,285) (4,000)

Funding Adjustment - - - - - - 39,545

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures for the year (38,675) - - (1,016,840) 338,479 (717,036) (354,610)

Net changes in investment
in capital assets (28,390) (16,000) - 48,941 (4,551) - -

Balance, end of year $ 3,120,462 $ 726,442 $ 208,145 $ (2,214,129) $ 361,503 $ 2,202,423 $ 2,987,744

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
6
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended March 31 2008 2007

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Deficiency of revenue over expenditures for the year $ (717,036) $ (354,610)
Adjustments for

Amortization of capital assets 2,838,955 2,651,172
Amortization of deferred contributions related

to capital assets (2,800,280) (2,612,418)
Prior year funding adjustment - 39,545

Deferred contributions - expenses of future periods
Receipts 1,510,736 1,702,861
Expenditures (1,622,661) (1,627,303)

(790,286) (200,753)

Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable 235,272 (9,143)
Due from (to) Manitoba Health (914,732) (1,680,934)
Inventories 68,125 41,120
Prepaid expense 129,150 (154,347)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 783,567 374,176
Accrued vacation entitlements 144,513 (50,614)

445,895 (1,479,742)

Accrued retirement obligations 13,277 503,558

(331,114) (1,176,937)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of capital assets (2,548,084) (2,314,962)
Other assets 13,291 (84,580)

(2,534,793) (2,399,542)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Repayment of long-term debt (47,836) (109,681)
Repayment of funds to Foundations (58,600) (58,600)
Receipt of deferred contributions related to capital assets 2,624,310 1,761,902
Payout of externally restricted net assets (68,285) (4,000)

2,449,589 1,589,621

Net decrease in cash and term deposits (416,318) (1,986,858)

Cash and term deposits, beginning of year 4,861,818 6,848,676

Cash and term deposits, end of year $ 4,445,500 $ 4,861,818

Supplementary Information
Interest paid during the year $ 28,394 $ 22,794

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
7
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

March 31, 2008

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles for not-for-profit organizations.

Revenue Recognition The Authority follows the deferral method of accounting for
contributions which include donations and government grants.

Under the Health Services Insurance Act and regulations thereto,
the Authority is funded primarily by the Province of Manitoba in
accordance with budget arrangements established by Manitoba
Health. Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the period to
which they relate. Grants approved but not received at the end of
an accounting period are accrued. Where a portion of a grant
relates to a future period, it is deferred and recognized in that
subsequent period. These financial statements reflect agreed
funding arrangements with Manitoba Health with respect to the
year ended March 31, 2008.

With respect to actual operating results, certain adjustments to
funding will be made by Manitoba Health after completion of their
review of the Authority's accounts.

In Globe Funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for the
five service categories of Acute Care, Long-term Care,
Community and Mental Health, Home Care and Emergency
Response and Transport.

Any operating surplus greater than 2% of budget related to global
funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of financial
position as a payable to Manitoba Health until such time as
Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At that time,
Manitoba Health determines what portion of the approved surplus
may be retained by the Authority, or repaid to Manitoba Health.

Under Manitoba Health policy, the Regional Health Authority is
responsible for In Globe deficits, unless otherwise approved by
Manitoba Health.

Out of Globe Funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for
specific programs.

Any operating surpluses related to Out of Globe funding
arrangements are recorded on the statement of financial position
as a payable to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba
Health reviews the financial statements. At that time, Manitoba
Health determines what portion of the approved surplus may be
retained by the Authority, or repaid to Manitoba Health.

8
Page 1298



INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

March 31, 2008

Revenue Recognition
(continued) Conversely, any operating deficits related to Out-of-Globe funding

arrangements are recorded on the statement of financial position
as a receivable from Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba
Health reviews the financial statements. At that time, Manitoba
Health determines their final funding approvals which indicate the
portion of the deficit that will be paid to the Authority. Any
unapproved costs not paid by Manitoba Health are absorbed by
the Authority.

Any adjustments will be reflected in the year the final statement of
recommended costs is received from Manitoba Health.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when
received or receivable if the amount to be received can be
reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in
the year in which the related expenses are recognized.
Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital assets are
deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis, at a
rate corresponding with the amortization rate for the related
capital assets.

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the
year in which the related expenses are recognized. Unrestricted
investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which
it is earned.

Inventories Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable
value, cost being determined by the first-in, first-out method.

Employee Future Benefits Pension and other employee future benefit costs are determined
using the projected benefit method prorated on years of service
and based on best estimate assumptions.

Compensated Absences Compensation expense is accrued to all employees as entitlement
to these payments is earned in accordance with the Authority's
benefit plans for vacation and retirement allowances.
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

March 31, 2008

Use of Estimates In preparing the Authority's financial statements, management is
required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenditures
during the period.  Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Contributed Services A substantial number of volunteers contribute a significant amount
of their time each year.  Because of the difficulty of determining
the fair value, contributed services are not recognized in the
financial statements.

Capital Assets Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital
assets are recorded at fair value at the date of contribution.
Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to expense.
Betterments which extend the estimated useful life of an asset are
capitalized. When a capital asset no longer contributes to the
Authority's ability to provide services, its carrying amount is
written down to its residual value.

Capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis using the
following annual rates:

Land improvements 5%
Buildings 3.33% and 5%
Ambulances 20%
Equipment and computers 10% - 20%

10
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

March 31, 2008

Financial Instruments The Authority utilizes various financial instruments.  Unless
otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the Authority is
not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising
from these financial instruments and the carrying amounts
approximate fair values.

All transactions related to financial instruments are recorded on a
settlement date basis.

The Authority classifies its financial instruments into one of the
following categories based on the purpose for which the asset was
acquired.  The Authority's accounting policy for each category is
as follows:

Held-for-trading

This category is comprised of cash and short-term investments
(guaranteed investment certificates).  They are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in the income statement.
Transaction costs related to instruments classified as held-for-
trading are expensed as incurred.
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

March 31, 2008

Financial Instruments
(continued) Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets resulting from
the delivery of cash or other assets by a lender to a borrower in
return for a promise to repay on a specified date or dates, or on
demand.  They arise principally through the provision of goods
and services to customers, but also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary assets comprised of accounts receivable,
amounts due from the Province of Manitoba, vacation
entitlements receivable and retirement obligations receivable.
They are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently
carried at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method,
less any provision for impairment.  Transaction costs related to
loans and receivables are expensed as incurred.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities includes all financial liabilities other than
those classified as held-for-trading and comprises accounts
payable and accruals.  These liabilities are initially recognized at
fair value and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method.  Transaction costs related to other
financial liabilities are expensed as incurred.

New Accounting
Pronouncements Recent accounting pronouncements that have been issued but

are not yet effective, and have a potential implication for the
Authority, are as follows:

Financial instruments - disclosures and presentation

CICA Handbook Section 3862, Financial Instruments - Disclosure,
increases the disclosures currently required to enable users to
evaluate the significance of financial instruments for an entity's
financial position and performance, including disclosures about
fair value.  CICA Handbook Section 3863, Financial Instruments -
Presentation, replaces the existing requirements on the
presentation of financial instruments, which have been carried
forward unchanged.  These standards are effective for interim and
annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or
after October 1, 2007.  The Authority is currently evaluating the
impact of the adoption of these changes on the disclosure and
presentation within its financial statements.
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

March 31, 2008

New Accounting
Pronouncements
(continued) Inventories

The CICA has issued Section 3031, Inventories, which provide
guidance on determining cost as well as other recognition,
measurement, disclosure and presentation issues related to
inventories.  The standard include guidance on the treatment of
excess capacities, inventory valuation and write-downs and
additional elements to be considered in measuring inventory
costs.  The new standard is effective for interim and annual
financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after
January 1, 2008.  The Authority is currently assessing the impact
of the new standard.
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

1. Entity Definition and Basis of Financial Statements

Interlake Regional Health Authority Inc. was incorporated under the laws of the Province of
Manitoba. The Authority commenced providing health care services on April 1, 1997 in the
Interlake Region of Manitoba. The Authority is a registered charity under The Income Tax Act
and accordingly is exempt from income taxes, provided certain requirements of The Income
Tax Act are met.

Under the Regional Health Authorities and Consequential Amendments Act, the Authority
entered into negotiations with all health care facilities in the region to either transfer those
facilities' operations, property, liabilities and obligations to the Authority or to operate as a
contract facility funded by the Authority. These negotiations have been completed.

Two facilities within the region operate under contract arrangements for funding with the
Authority. They are Betel Home - Gimli and Betel Home - Selkirk. The operations of these
facilities have been consolidated in these financial statements as the Authority exercises
significant influence over them by virtue of acting as funding agent. Any non-Manitoba Health
funded activities of these facilities (i.e. apartments, seniors' housing) have been excluded from
these financial statements.

2.  Change in Accounting Policy

On April 1, 2007, the Authority retroactively adopted, without restatement of prior periods,
CICA Handbook Section 3861, "Financial Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation", Section
3855, "Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement" and Section 3865, "Hedges".
These new Handbook Sections provide comprehensive requirements of the recognition and
measurement of financial instruments, as well as standards on when and how hedge
accounting may be applied.

Under these new standards, all financial instruments, including derivatives, are included on the
consolidated statement of financial position and are measured either at fair market value or, in
limited circumstances, at cost or amortized cost.

The adoption of these new standards had no material impact on the Authority's consolidated
statement of operations.
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

3.  Due from (to) Manitoba Health
2008 2007

Selkirk Surgical Program waitlist $ 668,500 $ 668,500
07/08 CUPE wage standardization 439,600 -
07/08 MNU wage standardization 280,500 -
07/08 IUOE wage standardization 162,016 -
Other wage standardization 100,000 -
Interfacility ambulance transfers 238,520 167,989
Safety & Security 122,834 97,527
Hep B Immunization program 84,153 114,201
Eriksdale Ultrasound funding 33,360 -
Percey E. Moore related costs 31,483 -
Laptop encryption software 10,000 -
Spiritual care program 5,750 -
Out of Globe 2003/04 - (392,644)
Out of Globe 2004/05 - 32,971
Out of Globe 2005/06 - (235,755)
Out of Globe 2006/07 264,330 359,362
Out of Globe 2007/08 (431,440) -
07/08 MGEU P/T market supplement 251,942 -
05/06 MGEU CS market supplement - 49,558
06/07 MGEU CS market supplement - 118,102
05/06 MGEU EMS market supplement - 71,667
06/07 MGEU EMS market supplement - 71,667
Supportive Housing - St. Laurent - 26,425
Board orientation and education - 3,196
Physician stabilization initiative - 194,050

$ 2,261,548 $ 1,346,816
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

4.  Accrued Vacation Entitlements

The Authority records a provision for accrued vacation entitlements.  Prior to March 31, 2004
changes in the liability related to vacation were recoverable from Manitoba Health.  At that
date, Manitoba Health advised that subsequent to March 31, 2004 all funding related to past
and future vacation entitlement costs would be included in in-globe funding and that the
maximum liability to be recognized by Manitoba Health to facilities would be capped at March
31, 2004 levels.  Accordingly, each year as vacation entitlements are paid and earned by the
Authority's employees, the related vacation entitlement receivable is collected and re-
established up to this maximum amount.

An analysis of the changes in the vacation entitlements receivable from Manitoba Health is as
follows:

2008 2007

Balance, beginning of year $ 3,688,400 $ 3,688,400
Net changes in vacation entitlements receivable - -

Balance, end of year $ 3,688,400 $ 3,688,400

An analysis of the changes accrued in the vacation entitlements is as follows:

Balance, beginning of year $ 4,426,132 $ 4,476,744
Net increase (decrease) in accrued vacation entitlements 144,513 (50,612)

Balance, end of year $ 4,570,645 $ 4,426,132

5.  Capital Assets
2008 2007

Accumulated Accumulated
Cost Amortization Cost Amortization

Land $ 180,667 $ - $ 178,367 $ -
Land improvements 370,102 370,102 370,102 370,102
Buildings 61,307,458 26,393,872 59,992,079 24,967,240
Ambulances 183,621 183,621 183,621 183,621
Equipment 17,440,853 11,473,490 19,074,658 11,673,265
Equipment - computers 1,884,823 1,211,997 1,626,363 976,449
Construction in progress 2,811,783 - 2,926,615 -

$ 84,179,307 $ 39,633,082 $ 84,351,805 $ 38,170,677

Cost less accumulated
       amortization $ 44,546,225 $ 46,181,128

16
Page 1306



INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

6. Bank Indebtedness

The Authority has an approved operating line of credit with the Canadian Imperial Bank of
Commerce to a maximum amount of $500,000. The line of credit bears interest at Canadian
Imperial Bank of Commerce prime rate less 0.75% and is supported by an authorization letter
from Manitoba Health.

7. Long-term Debt
2008 2007

CMHC mortgage payable, bearing interest at 4.63%
per annum, due September 1, 2017 and requiring
monthly principal and interest payments of $6,338,
secured by a first charge on land and building
(Stonewood Place) $ 584,770 $ 632,606

Current portion of long-term debt 50,338 47,529

$ 534,432 $ 585,077

Principal payments due in the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2009 $ 50,338
2010 52,634
2011 55,099
2012 57,641
2013 60,547
Thereafter 308,511

$ 584,770
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

8. Deferred Contributions

a) Expenses of future periods

Deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods represent the unspent amount
of donations, grants received and grants for major repairs.

2008 2007

Balance, beginning of year $ 1,575,237 $ 1,499,679

Additional amounts received during year 1,461,568 1,653,693

Funding for reserve for major repairs 49,168 49,168

Less 2007/2008 expenditures (1,622,661) (1,627,303)

Balance, end of year $ 1,463,312 $ 1,575,237

b) Capital assets

Deferred capital contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount
of donations, grants received and funding of approved borrowings for the purchase of
capital assets. The amortization of deferred capital contributions is recorded as revenue in
the statement of operations at rates which match the amortization of the related capital
asset purchased with the donations, grants or approved borrowings.

2008 2007

Balance, beginning of year $ 42,360,995 $ 43,211,511

Additional contributions received, net 2,624,310 1,761,902

Less amounts transferred to DSM (1,344,032) -

Less amounts amortized to revenue (2,800,280) (2,612,418)

Balance, end of year $ 40,840,993 $ 42,360,995
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

9. Investment in Capital Assets
2008 2007

a) Investment in capital assets is calculated as follows:

Capital assets $ 44,546,225 $ 46,181,128
Amounts financed by

Deferred contributions 40,840,993 42,360,995
Long-term debt 584,770 632,606

$ 3,120,462 $ 3,187,527

b) Change in net assets invested in capital assets is calculated as follows:

2008 2007

Deficiency of revenue over expenditures
   Amortization of deferred contributions

related to capital assets $ 2,800,280 $ 2,612,418
   Amortization of capital assets (2,838,955) (2,651,172)

$ (38,675) $ (38,754)

Net changes in investment in capital assets
   Purchase of capital assets $ 2,548,084 $ 2,314,962
   Amounts funded by

Manitoba Health funding (2,441,963) (1,649,838)
      Donations (182,347) (112,064)
   Repayment of long-term debt 47,836 109,681

$ (28,390) $ 662,741
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

10. Revenue from Manitoba Health
2008 2007

Revenue from Manitoba Health
Revenue as per Manitoba Health's final funding document $ 86,917,186 $ 81,189,535
Debt interest allocation (257,772) (436,181)
Equipment allocation (398,332) (398,328)
Funds for loans held by the Province of Manitoba (362,834) (686,376)
Reserve for major repairs funding (26,965) (26,976)

85,871,283 79,641,674
Add: Selkirk Surgical Expansion 668,500 668,500

CUPE wage standardization 601,616 94,477
MNU wage standardization 280,500 -
Other wage standardization 100,000 -
MGEU Community support wage standardization - 167,660
Interfacility ambulance transfers 783,555 233,478
Safety and renovations 226,761 317,806
Influenza and Hep B 156,593 186,641
Percy E. Moore related cost reimbursement 31,483 -
Spiritual care 5,750 -
Out-of-globe items and adjustments (526,124) 667,474
MGEU P/T Market supplement 251,942 143,334
Children's therapy initiative 60,426 21,504
Speech wait list initiative 8,333 41,667
Long-term care strategy 23,166 26,425
Healthy Child Programs 924,267 858,872
Nurse recruitment and retention 49,371 60,598
Early years research program 90,875 75,300
Mobile ultrasound funding 33,360 -
Chronic disease prevention 71,375 39,433
Mental health wait list 167,300 83,650
St. Paul EMS station 42,000 -
Louis Riel Day funding 169,899 -
Provincial Data Network 46,616 122,682
Cardiac Care 36,523 7,962
Risk Factor Complication Assessments 459 13,605
Physician stabilization initiative - 194,050
ER Physician - Hard to fill Shift Initiative - 23,400
Retirement obligation funding 2005/2006 - 96,905
French Language Services - 43,386

Total Revenue from Manitoba Health $ 90,175,829 $ 83,830,483

Represented as:
Operating revenue $ 90,175,829 $ 83,733,578
Other item - Retirement obligation funding 2005/2006 - 96,905

$ 90,175,829 $ 83,830,483
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

11. Commitments and Contingencies

a) The nature of the health care industry's activities is such that there is usually litigation
pending or in prospect at any time. With respect to claims at March 31, 2008,
management believes the Authority has valid defences and appropriate insurance
coverages in place.  In the event any claims are successful, management believes that
such claims are not expected to have a material effect on the Authority's financial position.

b) On July 1, 1987, a group of health care organizations, ("subscribers"), formed Healthcare
Insurance Reciprocal of Canada ("HIROC"). HIROC is registered as a Reciprocal pursuant
to provincial Insurance Acts, which permit persons reciprocal contracts of the indemnity
insurance. HIROC facilitates the provision of liability insurance coverage to health care
organizations in the provinces of Ontario, Manitoba, Saskatchewan and Newfoundland.
Subscribers pay annual premiums, which are actuarially determined, and are subject to
assessment for losses in excess of such premiums, if any, experienced by the group of
subscribers for the years in which they were a subscriber. No such assessments have
been made to March 31, 2008.

The Authority's coverage also includes contract facilities as named insured parties.

12.  Employee Future Benefits

a) Accrued retirement entitlement

Accrued retirement obligations are based on an actuarial valuation as at March 31, 2008. The
RHA's contractual commitment for the pre-retirement entitlement for members of the Health
Employees Pension Plan is to pay out four days of salary for each year of service upon
retirement if the employee complies with one of the following conditions:

-  has ten years service and has reached the age of 55 or;
- qualifies for the "eighty" rule which is calculated by adding the number of years service

to the age of the employee or;
- retires at or after age 65 or;
- terminates employment at any time due to permanent disability

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Authority's accrued retirement
entitlements include mortality and withdrawals rates, a discount rate of 5.5% (4.85% in 2007)
and a rate of salary increase of 3.5% (3.0% in 2007) plus an age related merit/promotion
scale.

The amount recorded as a receivable from the Province for pre-retirement costs was initially
determined based on the value of the corresponding actuarial liability for pre-retirement costs
as at March 31, 2004.  Subsequent to March 31, 2004, the Province has included in its
ongoing annual in-globe funding to the Authority, an amount equivalent to the change in the
pre-retirement liability, which includes annual interest accretion related to the receivable.  The
receivable will be paid by the Province when required.
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INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

12.  Employee Future Benefits (continued)

An analysis of the changes in the employee benefits payable is as follows:
2008 2007

Balance, beginning of year $ 5,462,445 $ 4,958,887
Net increase in pre-retirement entitlements 13,277 503,558

Balance, end of year $ 5,475,722 $ 5,462,445

b) Pension plan

Substantially all of the employees of the Authority are members of the Healthcare Employees
Pension Plan (a successor of the Manitoba Health Organization Inc. Plan) (the "Plan") which
is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan available to all eligible employees of the
participating members of the Plan. Plan members will receive benefits based on the length of
service and on the average of annualized earnings during the best five years of the last
eleven years prior to retirement, termination or death, that provides the highest earnings.

Pension assets consist of investment grade securities. Market and credit risk on these
securities are managed by the Plan by placing Plan assets in trust and through the Plan
investment policy.

Pension expense is based on Plan management's best estimates, in consultation with its
actuaries, of the amount, together with the 6.8% of salary under $44,900 and 8.4% of salary
over $44,900 contributed by employees, required to provide a high level of assurance that
benefits will be fully represented by fund assets at retirement, as provided by the Plan. The
funding objective is for employer contributions to the Plan to remain a constant percentage of
employees' contributions.

Variances between actuarial funding estimates and actual experience may be material and
any differences are generally to be funded by the participating members. The most recent
actuarial valuation of the Plan as at December 31, 2006 indicates the Plan is fully funded.
Contributions to the Plan made during the year by the Authority on behalf of its employees
amounted to $2,935,370 (2007 - $2,731,554) and are included in the statement of operations.

The remainder of employees are members of the Province of Manitoba's defined benefit Civil
Service Superannuation Plan. Liability for variances between actuarial funding estimates and
actual experience lies with the Province.

13. Due to Betel Home Foundation

The amount payable to Betel Home Foundation - Pathfinders' Benevolent Fund by the
contract facilities is non-interest bearing with no specified terms of repayments.

22
Page 1312



INTERLAKE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

14. Related Parties

The contract facilities, Betel Home - Selkirk, and Betel Home - Gimli, are operated by the
Betel Home Foundation. Any fundraising of the Betel Home Foundation is solely for the
benefit of the contract facilities.

15. Net Assets - Internal Restrictions and External Restrictions

Internal Restrictions
The Board of Directors has internally restricted $39,192 (2007 - $32,222) of interest
earned on donation funds. The cumulative balance of internally restricted net assets is
$208,145 (2007 - $206,953).  These are Board restricted to community based health
promotion projects and recruitment initiatives.

External Restrictions
Net assets subject to externally imposed restrictions represent the former balances of net
assets of facilities integrated into the Interlake Regional Health Authority, including
accumulated interest. Such net assets are restricted to community contributions and/or for
the benefit of the community from which the net assets originated.

16. Comparative Figures

Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to provide better comparison with
the current year's results.
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Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors of
NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.

We have audited the statement of financial position of NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH
ASSOCIATION INC. as at March 31, 2008 and the statements of operations, changes in net
assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Association's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Association as at March 31, 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Chartered Accountants

Winnipeg, Manitoba
May 23, 2008
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NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Statement of Financial Position

March 31 2008 2007

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and bank $ 3,815,849 $ 2,518,019
Accounts receivable (Note 3) 689,707 781,248
Due from Manitoba Health (Note 4) 162,627 654,123
Inventories 615,265 509,098
Prepaid expense 138,849 118,560
Employee benefits recoverable (Note 5) 1,796,024 1,796,024

7,218,321 6,377,072
Retirement obligations recoverable (Note 5) 1,729,643 1,729,643
Capital assets (Note 6) 30,505,325 31,445,871

$ 39,453,289 $ 39,552,586

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 2,355,037 $ 2,169,123
Employee benefits payable (Note 5) 2,583,206 2,527,641
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 7) 89,019 78,353

5,027,262 4,775,117

Accrued retirement obligations (Notes 5 and 14) 2,418,342 2,208,395
Long-term debt (Note 7) 1,193,758 1,252,442
Deferred Contributions

Expenses of future periods (Note 8a) 1,428,011 1,333,252
Capital assets (Note 8b) 28,425,242 29,330,414

33,465,353 34,124,503

38,492,615 38,899,620

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Net Assets

Investment in capital assets (Note 9) 1,183,918 1,205,032
Externally restricted (Note 10) 245,963 270,962
Unrestricted - RHA (469,207) (823,028)

960,674 652,966

$ 39,453,289 $ 39,552,586

Approved on behalf of the Board:

 Director

 Director

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Statement of Operations

For the year ended March 31 2008 2007

Revenue
Manitoba Health income (Note 11) $ 44,064,541 $ 40,503,208
Non-Insured income 2,826,837 2,714,002
Offset and other income 2,478,194 2,364,977
Amortization of deferred contributions 1,499,647 1,573,513
Ancillary income 306,429 329,165

51,175,648 47,484,865

Expenditures
Acute care services 11,396,064 10,538,538
Amortization of capital assets 1,508,416 1,588,461
Ancillary operations operating expenditures 285,115 315,207
Ancillary operations amortization 63,425 63,425
Community based home care 5,516,701 5,195,605
Dialysis 371,058 287,818
Health promotion/prevention and primary care 6,444,771 5,814,962
Interest on long-term debt 39,213 40,135
Lab and imaging services 2,515,190 2,289,686
Land ambulance program 2,677,388 2,450,965
Long-term care services 14,470,010 13,812,582
Medical remuneration 2,701,611 2,589,331
Northern patient transportation program 152,774 165,374
Regional health authority 2,665,414 2,614,708

50,807,150 47,766,797

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures
before other items 368,498 (281,932)

Other Items
One time Pre-retirement settlement (Note 11) - 531,767

Excess of revenue over expenditures for the year $ 368,498 $ 249,835

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended March 31 2008 2007

Investment in Externally 
Capital Assets Restricted Unrestricted 

(Note 9) (Note 10) RHA Total Total

Balance, beginning of year $ 1,205,032 $ 270,962 $ (823,028) $ 652,966 $ 403,659

Transfers from (to) unrestricted net assets 53,106 - (53,106) - -

Sale of building (58,300) - - (58,300) -

Purchase of equipment from other funds 56,274 (24,999) (33,765) (2,490) (528)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures for the year (72,194) - 440,692 368,498 249,835

Balance, end of year $ 1,183,918 $ 245,963 $ (469,207) $ 960,674 $ 652,966

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
5

Page 1334



NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended March 31 2008 2007

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Excess of revenue over expenditures for the year $ 368,498 $ 249,835
Adjustments for

Amortization of capital assets 1,571,841 1,651,886
Amortization of deferred contributions related

to capital assets (1,499,647) (1,573,513)
Net change in employee benefits 265,512 822,271

706,204 1,150,479
Changes in non-cash working capital

Accounts receivable 91,541 (193,900)
Due from/to Manitoba Health 491,496 (261,129)
Inventories (106,167) (41,704)
Prepaid expense (20,289) (61,008)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 185,914 (236,446)

1,348,699 356,292

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of capital assets (1,139,438) (2,278,498)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Advances on long-term debt 35,000 -
Repayment of long-term debt (83,018) (75,192)
Increase in deferred contributions related to 

expenses of future periods, net 163,144 186,244
Receipt of deferred contributions related to capital assets 973,443 2,304,971

1,088,569 2,416,023

Net increase in cash 1,297,830 493,817

Cash, beginning of year 2,518,019 2,024,202

Cash, end of year $ 3,815,849 $ 2,518,019

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

March 31, 2008

Revenue Recognition The Association follows the deferral method of accounting for
contributions, which include donations and government grants.

Under the Health Insurance Act and Regulations thereto, the
Association is funded primarily by the Province of Manitoba in
accordance with budget arrangements established by Manitoba
Health. Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the period to
which they relate. Grants approved but not received at the end of
an accounting period are accrued. Where a portion of a grant
relates to a future period, it is deferred and recognized in that
subsequent period. These financial statements reflect agreed
arrangements approved by the Ministry with respect to the year
ended March 31, 2008.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when
received or receivable if the amount to be received can be
reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions other than endowment
contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the
related expenses are recognized. Contributions restricted for the
purchase of capital assets are deferred and amortized into
revenue on a straight line basis, at a rate corresponding with the
amortization rate for the related capital assets.

Endowment contributions are recognized as direct increases in
endowment net assets.

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the
year in which the related expenses are recognized. Unrestricted
investment income is recognized as revenue when earned.

Revenue from the Provincial Insurance Plan, preferred
accommodation, and marketed services is recognized when the
goods are sold or the service is provided.

Out-of-Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for
specific programs.

Any operating surplus related to Out-of-Globe funding
arrangements is recorded on the statement of financial position as
a payable to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health
reviews the financial statements. At that time, Manitoba Health
determines what portion of the approved surplus may be retained
by the Association, or repaid to Manitoba Health. 
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NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

March 31, 2008

Revenue Recognition
(continued) Conversely, any operating deficit related to Out-of-Globe funding

arrangements is recorded on the statement of financial position as
a receivable from Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba
Health reviews the financial statements. At that time, Manitoba
Health determines their final funding approvals, which indicate the
portion of the deficit that will be paid to the Association. Any
unapproved costs not paid by Manitoba Health are absorbed by
the Association.

In-Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for
Regional Health Association programs unless otherwise specified
as Out-of-Globe funding. This includes volume changes and price
increases for the five service categories of Acute Care, Long-term
Care, Community and Mental Health, Home Care and Emergency
Response, and Transport. All additional costs in these five service
categories must be absorbed from within global funding provided. 

Any operating surplus greater than 2% of budget related to In-
Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of
financial position as a payable to Manitoba Health until such time
as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At that time,
Manitoba Health determines what portion of the approved surplus
may be retained by the Association, or repaid to Manitoba Health. 

Under Manitoba Health policy, the Regional Health Association is
responsible for In-Globe deficits, unless otherwise approved by
Manitoba Health. 

Inventories Inventories are valued at lower of cost or replacement cost. Cost
is generally determined on an average cost basis.

Contributed Services A substantial number of volunteers contribute a significant amount
of their time each year. Because of the difficulty of determining
the fair value, contributed services are not recognized in the
financial statements.

Capital Assets Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost.  Contributed
capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of
contribution.  Assets acquired under capital leases are amortized
over the estimated life of the assets or over the lease term, as
appropriate.  Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to
expense.  Betterments, which extend the estimated life of an
asset, are capitalized. When a capital asset no longer contributes
to the facility's ability to provide services, its carrying amount is
written down to its residual value.
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NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

March 31, 2008

Capital Assets
(continued) Construction in progress is recorded at cost. When the specific

projects are completed, all capitalized costs are transferred to
capital assets. 

Capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis using the
following annual rates:

Land improvements 5% - 10%
Buildings 2% -   5%
Leasehold improvements 5%
Building service equipment 4% - 10%
Equipment 5% - 20%
Vehicles 8% - 15%
Software and licenses 20%

Compensated Absences Compensation expense is accrued for all employees as
entitlement to these payments is earned in accordance with the
Association's benefit plans for vacation, statutory holiday and
retirement allowances.

Financial Instruments The Association utilizes various financial instruments. Unless
otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the Association
is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks
arising from these financial instruments and the carrying amounts
approximate fair values.

All transactions related to financial instruments are recorded on a
settlement date basis.

The Association classifies its financial instruments into one of the
following categories based on the purpose for which the asset was
acquired. The Association's accounting policy for each category is
as follows:

Held-for-trading - This category is comprised of cash and short-
term investments (guaranteed investment certificates). They are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in the income statement.
Transaction costs related to instruments classified as held-for-
trading are expensed as incurred.
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NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

March 31, 2008

Financial Instruments
(continued) Loans and Receivables - These assets are non-derivative

financial assets resulting from the delivery of cash or other assets
by a lender to a borrower in return for a promise to repay on a
specified date or dates, or on demand.  They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to customers, but
also incorporate other types of contractual monetary assets
comprised of accounts receivable, amounts due from the
Province of Manitoba, vacation entitlements receivable and
retirement obligations receivable. They are initially recognized at
fair value and subsequently carried at amortized cost, using the
effective interest rate method, less any provision for impairment.
Transaction costs related to loans and receivables are expensed
as incurred.

Other Financial Liabilities - Other financial liabilities includes all
financial liabilities other than those classified as held-for-trading
and comprises accounts payable and accruals. These liabilities
are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
Transaction costs related to other financial liabilities are expensed
as incurred.

Use of Estimates In preparing the Association's financial statements, management
is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenditures
during the period.  Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Retirement Entitlement 
Obligations The Association applies the accounting recommendations for

employee future benefits contained in Section 3461 of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants' Handbook.

The Association has a contractual commitment, based on an
actuarial valuation, for pre-retirement entitlement for members of
the Health Employees Pension Plan and members of the Civil
Service Superannuation Fund to pay out to employees four days
salary per year of service upon retirement if they comply with one
of the following conditions:

i) have ten years service and have reached the age 55;
ii) qualify for the "eighty" rule which is calculated by adding the

number of years service to the age of the employee;
iii) retire at or after age 65;
iv) terminate employment at any time due to permanent

disability.
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NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

March 31, 2008

New Accounting 
Pronouncements Recent accounting pronouncements that have been issued but

are not yet effective, and have a potential implication for the
Association, are as follows:

Financial Instruments - Disclosures and Presentation - CICA
Handbook Section 3862, Financial Instruments - Disclosure,
increases the disclosures currently required to enable users to
evaluate the significance of financial instruments for an entity's
financial position and performance, including disclosures about
fair value.  CICA Handbook Section 3863, Financial Instruments -
Presentation, replaces the existing requirements on the
presentation of financial instruments, which have been carried
forward unchanged.  These standards are effective for interim and
annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or
after October 1, 2007.  The Association is currently evaluating the
impact of the adoption of these changes on the disclosure and
presentation within its financial statements.

Inventories - The CICA has issued Section 3031, Inventories,
which provide guidance on determining cost as well as other
recognition, measurement, disclosure and presentation issues
related to inventories.  The standard include guidance on the
treatment of excess capacities, inventory valuation and write-
downs and additional elements to be considered in measuring
inventory costs.  The new standard is effective for interim and
annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or
after January 1, 2008.  The Association is currently assessing the
impact of the new standard.

11
Page 1340



NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

1. Entity Definition and Basis of Financial Statements

North Eastman Health Association Inc. ("the Association") was incorporated under the Health
Authorities Act on April 1, 1997.  The Association is principally involved in providing health
care services to the north-eastern regions of Manitoba. The Association is a registered charity
under the Income Tax Act and accordingly is exempt from income taxes, provided certain
requirements of the Income Tax Act are met. 

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles for not-for-profit organizations.

The financial statements include the following sites and services:

Beausejour District Ambulance 
Beausejour Health Centre
Bissett Ambulance 
East-Gate Lodge
Kin Place Health Complex
Lac du Bonnet Ambulance
Lac du Bonnet PCH and Health Centre
Pinawa Ambulance 
Pinawa Hospital
Pine Falls Ambulance
Pine Falls Health Complex
Reynolds Ambulance
Springfield Ambulance 
Springfield Handivan
Stony Plains Terrace
Sunnywood Manor PCH
Whitemouth District Ambulance 
Whitemouth District Health Centre
Whitemouth Handivan 
Winnipeg River Handivan 

2.  Change in Accounting Policy   

On April 1, 2007, the  Association retroactively adopted, without restatement of prior periods,
CICA Handbook Section 3861, "Financial Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation", Section
3855, "Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement" and Section 3865, "Hedges".
These new Handbook Sections provide comprehensive requirements of the recognition and
measurement of financial instruments, as well as standards on when and how hedge
accounting may be applied.

Under these new standards, all financial instruments, including derivatives, are included on the
statement of financial position and are measured either at fair market value or, in limited
circumstances, at cost or amortized cost.

The adoption of these new standards had no material impact on the  Association's statement of
operations.
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NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

3. Accounts Receivable
2008 2007

Ambulance $ 216,877 $ 263,944
Canada Revenue Agency - GST Rebate 210,378 277,894
Other 181,538 159,643
Clients 75,325 71,806
Receivable from foundations 5,589 7,961

$ 689,707 $ 781,248

4. Due (to) from  Manitoba Health
2008 2007

In-Globe funding $ 1,046,079 $ 474,459
Approved capital funding 123,296 203,632
Out-of-Globe funding (317,476) (23,968)
MSSP Payroll and PCH drug program (689,272) -

$ 162,627 $ 654,123

5. Employee Benefits Recoverable / Payable 

The Association records a provision for accrued vacation entitlements and retirement
obligations. Prior to March 31, 2004 changes in the liability related to vacation and retirement
obligations were recoverable from Manitoba Health. At that date, Manitoba Health advised
that subsequent to March 31, 2004 all funding related to past and future vacation entitlement
costs and retirement obligations would be included in in-globe funding and that the maximum
liability to be recognized by Manitoba Health to facilities would be capped at March 31, 2004
levels. Accordingly, each year as vacation entitlements are paid and earned by the Authority's
employees, the related vacation entitlement recoverable and retirement obligation
recoverable is collected and re-established up to this maximum amount.

An analysis of the changes in the employee benefits payable is as follows:
2008 2007

Balance, beginning of year $ 2,527,641 $ 2,347,380
Net changes in employee benefits 55,565 180,261

Balance, end of year $ 2,583,206 $ 2,527,641

An analysis of the changes accrued in the accrued retirement obligations is as follows:

Balance, beginning of year $ 2,208,395 $ 1,566,385
Net changes in retirement obligations 209,947 642,010

Balance, end of year $ 2,418,342 $ 2,208,395
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NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

6. Capital Assets
2008 2007

Accumulated Accumulated
Cost Amortization Cost Amortization

Land $ 333,034 $ - $ 333,034 $ -
Land improvements 463,273 336,778 369,814 322,863
Buildings 42,870,682 14,913,894 42,877,322 13,813,423
Leasehold improvements 14,399 8,411 14,399 7,691
Building service equipment 233,794 122,320 233,794 106,062
Equipment 8,824,138 6,922,650 9,478,299 7,682,526
Vehicles 939,049 868,991 917,425 845,651
Software and licenses 51,395 51,395 51,395 51,395

$ 53,729,764 $ 23,224,439 $ 54,275,482 $ 22,829,611

Cost less accumulated amortization $ 30,505,325 $ 31,445,871

7. Long-term Debt
2008 2007

CMHC mortgage payable, bearing interest at a rate of
4.39% per annum, due January 1, 2020 and requiring
monthly principal and interest payments of $7,587 $ 840,939 $ 894,044

CMHC mortgage payable, bearing interest at a rate of
4.17% per annum, due June 1, 2020 and requiring
monthly principal and interest payments of $3,573 411,505 436,751

Loan payable, bearing interest at a rate of 0% per
annum, due August 6, 2012 and requiring monthly
principal and interest payments of $583. 30,333 -

1,282,777 1,330,795
Current portion of long-term debt 89,019 78,353

$ 1,193,758 $ 1,252,442

Principal payments due in the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2009 $ 89,019
2010 92,476
2011 96,209
2012 100,015
2013 99,585
Thereafter 805,473

$ 1,282,777
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NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

8. Deferred Contributions

a) Expenses of Future Periods

Deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods represent the unspent
externally restricted grants and donations for research and other purposes.

2008 2007

Balance, beginning of year $ 1,333,252 $ 1,191,439
Amounts received related to future periods 1,156,020 934,587
Amounts amortized to revenue (992,876) (748,343)
Funding amounts transferred to capital assets (68,385) (44,431)

Balance, end of year $ 1,428,011 $ 1,333,252

b) Capital Assets

Deferred capital contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount
and unspent amount of donations, grants received and funding of approved borrowings
for the purchase of capital assets. The amortization of deferred capital contributions is
recorded as revenue in the statement of operations at rates which match the
amortization of the related capital asset purchased with the donations, grants or
approved borrowings.

2008 2007

Balance, beginning of the year $ 29,330,414 $ 28,555,322
Increase from Pinawa Construction 157,271 1,716,296
Additional contributions received/receivable 819,318 587,878
Amounts transferred from expenses of future periods 68,385 44,431
Amounts amortized to revenue in the year (1,499,647) (1,573,513)
Transfer of capital assets to Diagnostic Services Manitoba (450,499) -

Balance, end of the year $ 28,425,242 $ 29,330,414

Comprised of:
Unspent $ 436,133 $ 420,370
Spent 27,989,109 28,910,044

Balance, end of the year $ 28,425,242 $ 29,330,414
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NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

9. Investment in Capital Assets

Investment in capital assets is calculated as follows:
2008 2007

Capital assets $ 30,505,325 $ 31,445,871
Amounts financed by

Deferred contributions (27,989,109) (28,910,044)
Mortgages payable (1,282,777) (1,330,795)
Due to/(from) operating account (49,521) -

$ 1,183,918 $ 1,205,032

Change in net assets invested in capital assets is calculated as follows:

2008 2007

Excess of revenues over expenditures
Amortization of deferred contributions related 

to capital assets $ 1,499,647 $ 1,573,513
Amortization of capital assets (1,571,841) (1,651,886)

$ (72,194) $ (78,373)

Net changes in investment in capital assets
Purchase of capital assets $ 1,139,438 $ 2,278,498
Amounts funded by

Deferred contributions (777,664) (637,956)
Due to operating account (79,844) -
Deferred contributions - Pinawa construction (157,271) (1,596,111)

Transfers
Deferred contributions - expenses of future periods (net) (68,385) (44,431)

- unrestricted net assets 53,106 50,930
Sale of building (58,300) -

$ 51,080 $ 50,930

Total change in net assets invested in capital assets $ (21,114) $ (27,443)

10. Net Assets - External Restrictions

The net assets shall only be expended on items and/or projects that are authorized jointly by
the Board of Directors of North Eastman Health Association Inc. and the contributing
organizations.
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NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

11. Manitoba Health Income
2008 2007

Revenue as per Manitoba Health's final funding document $ 42,316,416 $ 41,711,296
Add: Public Health Programs 543,671 511,621

Nurse recruitment and retention 40,284 20,819
Other 6,151 5,972
MSSP payroll 1,514,462 -
PCH Drug program 210,463 -

Deduct: Amounts related to prior year (430,312) (397,193)
One time Pre-retirement funding - (531,767)

Total Funding Approved by Manitoba Health 44,201,135 41,320,748
Add: Salary funding receivable - MGEU & MNU 641,169 302,143

Immunization programs 44,809 55,154
Wait list funding 410 -
Out-of-globe - capital 114,966 203,632
Other 11,759 12,310
Long-term care strategy - 26,614
Interfacility transfer 122,493 57,553

Deduct: Amounts recorded as deferred contributions (753,690) (1,474,946)
Medical remuneration (317,476) -
Out-of-globe - Interest (1,034) -

Revenue from Manitoba Health before other items 44,064,541 40,503,208

One time Pre-retirement settlement - 531,767

$ 44,064,541 $ 41,034,975

17
Page 1346



NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

12. Commitments and Contingencies

a) The nature of the health care industry's activities is such that there is usually litigation
pending or in prospect at any time. With respect to claims at March 31, 2008,
management believes the Association has valid defences and appropriate insurance
coverages in place. In the event any claims are successful, management believes that
such claims are not expected to have a material effect on the Association's financial
position.

b) On July 1, 1987, a group of health care organizations, ("subscribers"), formed Healthcare
Insurance Reciprocal of Canada ("HIROC"). HIROC is registered as a Reciprocal
pursuant to provincial Insurance Acts, which permit persons reciprocal contracts of the
indemnity insurance. HIROC facilitates the provision of liability insurance coverage to
health care organizations in the provinces of Ontario, Manitoba, Saskatchewan and
Newfoundland. Subscribers pay annual premiums, which are actuarially determined, and
are subject to assessment for losses in excess of such premiums, if any, experienced by
the group of subscribers for the years in which they were a subscriber. No such
assessments have been made to March 31, 2008.

c) The Association has entered into various operating leases for its operations. The
minimum annual payments for the next five years are as follows:

2009 $ 180,930
2010 180,930
2011 180,930
2012 180,930
2013 180,930

13. Pension Plan

Substantially all of the employees of the Association are members of the Healthcare
Employees Pension Plan (the "Plan"), which is a multi employer defined benefit pension plan
available to all eligible employees. Plan members will receive benefits based on the length of
service and on the average annualized earnings calculated on the best five years of the last
eleven years prior to retirement, termination or death, that provides the highest earnings. The
costs of the benefit plan are not allocated to the individual entities within the related group. As
a result, individual entities within the related group are not able to identify their share of the
underlying assets and liabilities. Therefore, the plan is accounted for as a defined contribution
plan in accordance with the requirements of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants'
Handbook Section 3461.

Pension assets consist of investment grade securities. Market and credit risk on these
securities are managed by the Plan by placing plan assets in trust and through the Plan
investment policy. 
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NORTH EASTMAN HEALTH ASSOCIATION INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

13. Pension Plan (continued)

Pension expense is based on Plan management's best estimates, in consultation with its
actuaries, of the amount, together with the 6.8% (6.6% in 2007) of basic annual earnings up
to the Canada Pension Plan ceiling plus 8.4% (8.2% in 2007) of basic earnings in excess of
the Canada Pension Plan ceiling contributed by employees, required to provide a high level
of assurance that benefits will be fully represented by fund assets at retirement, as provided
by the Plan. The funding objective is for employer contributions to the Plan to remain a
constant percentage of employees' contributions.

Variances between actuarial funding estimates and actual experience may be material and
any differences are generally to be funded by the participating members. The most recent
actuarial valuation of the Plan as at December 31, 2006, indicates the plan is fully funded.

Certain of the employees of the Association are eligible for membership in the Manitoba
Homecare Employees Pension Plan, a multi-employer plan.

Actual contributions to the Healthcare Employees Pension Plan and the Manitoba Homecare
Employees Pension Plan made during the year by the Association on behalf of its employees
amounted to $1,501,034 ($1,342,824 in 2007) and are included in the statement of
operations.

Many of the employees of the Association are eligible for membership in the provincially
operated Civil Service Superannuation Plan. The pension liability for Association employees
is included in the Province of Manitoba's liability for the Civil Service Superannuation Fund.
Accordingly, no provision is required in the financial statements relating to the effects of
participation in the pension plan by the Association and its employees.

14. Accrued Retirement Obligations

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Association's accrued
retirement entitlements include mortality and withdrawals rates, a discount rate of 5.5%
(4.85% in 2007) and a rate of salary increase of 3.5% (3% in 2007) plus an age related
merit/promotion scale with no provision for disability.

15. Diagnostic Services of Manitoba

During the year the progress towards the transfer of diagnositic services to Diagnostic
Services of Manitoba began. The Association transferred the net book value of $450,499 of
assets to Diagnostic Services of Manitoba on October 31, 2007. In the future, employees of
the  Association will be transfered to Diagnostic Services of Manitoba.

16. Comparative Figures

Certain of the prior year's figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's
presentation.

19
Page 1348



 

1 
    

Management’s Responsibility 

 

 
 

 
To the Board of Directors of Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.: 
 

 

Management is responsible for preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements.  This responsibility 

includes selecting appropriate accounting principles and making objective judgments and estimates in accordance with 

Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 

In discharging its responsibilities for the integrity and fairness of the consolidated financial statements, management 

designs and maintains the necessary accounting systems and related internal controls to provide reasonable assurance 

that transactions are authorized, assets safeguarded and financial records are properly maintained to provide reliable 

information for the preparation of financial statements. 

The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee are composed primarily of Directors who are neither management nor 

employees of the Organization.  The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board to review the consolidated financial 

statements in detail with management and to report to the Board prior to their approval of the consolidated financial 

statements for publication. 

Meyers Norris Penny LLP, an independent firm of Chartered Accountants, is appointed by the Board of Parkland 

Regional Health Authority Inc. to audit the consolidated financial statements and report directly to them; their report 

follows.  The external auditors have full and free access to, and meet periodically and separately with, both the Audit 

Committee and management to discuss their audit findings. 

 

 

 Management  Management
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1401 Princess Ave., Brandon, Manitoba, R7A 7L7, Phone: (204) 727-0661, 1-800-446-0890 
 

2 

 
Auditors’ Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 To the Board of Directors of Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. 
  

 
We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of the Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. as at 

March 31, 2008 and the consolidated statements of changes in net assets, operations and cash flows for the year then 

ended.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization’s management.  Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that 

we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material 

misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 

 

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 

Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. as at March 31, 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the 

year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 

 

  

 

 

 

 Brandon, Manitoba           
                             
 June 19, 2008            Chartered Accountants
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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                                                                                 Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

As at March 31, 2008 
 

 Affiliates  Devolved  2008 2007 

 

 Assets 
 Current  
 Cash 1,334,276 5,183,113 6,517,389 4,957,727  
 Current investments (Note 5) - 18,920,521 18,920,521 258,139 
 Accounts receivable (Note 3) 136,793 2,236,996 2,373,789 1,798,336  
 Due from Manitoba Health (Note 4) - 2,506,538 2,506,538 3,540,299  
 Inventory 209,449 1,267,197 1,476,646 1,475,348  

Prepaid expenses 58,259 617,986 676,245 708,168  
Inter-facility (402,833) 402,833 - -   
 
 1,335,944 31,135,184 32,471,128 12,738,017  

  
 

Long-term investments (Note 5) - - - 17,357,424  
 
Capital assets (Note 6) 8,425,878 73,473,074 81,898,952 80,117,700  
 
Trust assets 2,869 30,666 33,535 77,366  
 
Manitoba Health receivable –employee benefits obligation (Note 7) 1,900,382 8,267,391 10,167,773 10,182,843  
 
 11,665,073 112,906,315 124,571,388 120,473,350  
 

Continued on next page 
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

As at March 31, 2008 
 

 Affiliates  Devolved  2008 2007 

      
  Continued from previous page 

 
Liabilities 
Current 
Lines of credit 12,615 - 12,615 202,071  
Accounts payable and accruals 1,722,504 7,778,784 9,501,288 7,431,003  
Employee benefits payable  1,343,668 7,656,656 9,000,324 8,971,095  

 Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8) - 80,450 80,450 118,970  
 
 3,078,787 15,515,890 18,594,677 16,723,139  
 
 
Long-term debt (Note 8) - - - 849,568  
  
Deferred benefits entitlement (Note 7) 750,526 3,115,489 3,866,015 3,760,203  
   

 Deferred contributions (Note 11) 7,954,708 96,552,111 104,506,819 99,784,016  
   
Trust liabilities 2,869 30,666 33,535 77,366  
 

  8,708,103 99,698,266 108,406,369 104,471,153 
 

 
Net Assets 
  Invested in capital assets (Note 12) 845,567 1,720,939 2,566,506 2,568,472  
  Internally restricted net assets 267,064 - 267,064 131,707  

        Unrestricted net assets (1,234,448) (4,028,780) (5,263,228) (3,421,121) 
  
 (121,817) (2,307,841) (2,429,658) (720,942)  
 
 11,665,073 112,906,315 124,571,388 120,473,350  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved on behalf of the Board 
 
                                                        Director                                                                             Director
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

For the year ended March 31, 2008 
     

  Internally 
 Invested in restricted for  2008 2007
 capital assets capital purposes Unrestricted Total Total 
 

Balance, beginning of year 2,568,472 131,707 (3,421,121) (720,942) 1,724,766  
 
Reclassification (Note 15) 142,036 217,176 (613,594) (254,382) (729,899) 
 
Restated 2,710,508 348,883 (4,034,715) (975,324) 994,867 
 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues     
  over expenses (370,874) (31,953) (543,375) (946,202) (1,713,386)  
 
Investment in capital assets 531,570 (38,628) (492,942) - 628  
 
Internal transfers 114,041 (11,238) (102,803) - (3,051)  
 
Net assets transferred/amalgamated (418,739) - (89,393) (508,132) 
 
 
Balance, end of year 2,566,506 267,064 (5,263,228) (2,429,658) (720,942)  
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Operations 

For the year ended March 31, 2008 
     

 Affiliates Devolved 2008 2007  

 

 Revenues 
   Manitoba Health operating income (Note 9) 14,651,310 86,827,216 101,478,526 94,868,787  
   Patient income 2,476,339 5,137,228 7,613,567 7,115,722 
   Other income 409,827 3,127,171 3,536,998 4,960,372  
   Amortization of deferred contributions 510,211 3,455,657 3,965,868 4,146,929 

 
 18,047,687 98,547,272 116,594,959 111,091,810  
 
 
Expenses 

   Acute care  6,494,082 39,232,465 45,726,547 44,187,989  
   Long-term care 10,421,945 23,553,462 33,975,407 32,148,225  
   Community and mental health - 9,427,228 9,427,228 11,377,072  
   Homecare 123,230 11,696,016 11,819,246 9,504,042  
   Emergency response and transport - 4,002,932 4,002,932 3,763,454  
   Parkland Regional Hospital Laundry Ltd. - 1,053,966 1,053,966 969,418  
   Regional health costs (Note 10) - 1,848,164 1,848,164 1,469,988  
   Medical remuneration – non global 389,570 4,010,066 4,399,636 3,710,918  
   Pre-retirement  181,270 758,269 939,539 969,381  
   Amortization of capital assets 576,514 3,762,248 4,338,762 4,678,771  
   Interest on long-term obligations  - 9,734 9,734 25,938 
    

 18,186,611 99,354,550 117,541,161 112,805,196  
 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses (138,924) (807,278) (946,202) (1,713,386) 
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended March 31, 2008 
 

 Affiliates Devolved 2008 2007  

 

 Cash provided by (used in) 
 Operations 
 Deficiency of revenues over expenses (138,924) (807,278) (946,202)  (1,713,386)  
 Items not involving cash:   
 Amortization of capital assets 576,514 3,762,248 4,338,762  4,678,771  
 Amortization of deferred contributions (510,211) (3,455,657) (3,965,868) (4,146,929) 
   

   
  (72,621) (500,687) (573,308)  (1,181,544)  

 
 
  Changes in non-cash operating working capital 
     Temporary investments 73,826 (18,823,587) (18,749,761) 2,062,554  
 Due from Manitoba Health - 1,033,761 1,033,761 (2,144,067)  
 Other working capital 1,037,354 599,629 1,636,983 1,207,660  

 
 1,111,180 (17,190,197) (16,079,017) 1,126,147  
 
 
Financing and Investing 

Purchase of capital assets (221,742) (8,313,095) (8,534,837) (4,708,989) 
Disposal of capital assets - 1,237,272 1,237,272 8,439 
Purchase of long-term investments 2,510 17,354,914 17,357,424 (1,410,798) 
Decrease in line of credit (189,456) - (189,456) (169,693) 
Deferred contributions 133,680 8,291,234 8,424,914 4,184,156 
Interfacility  (117,998) 117,998 - - 
Proceeds of long-term debt - - - 804,758 
Repayment of long-term debt - (83,330) (83,330) (87,273) 
Use of reserve - - - (7,553) 
Net asset transfers - - - (2,321) 

   
 
 (393,006) 18,604,993 18,211,987 (1,389,274) 
   
Increase (decrease) in cash resources during the year 645,553 914,109 1,559,662 (1,444,671)  
  
Cash resources, beginning of year 688,723 4,269,004 4,957,727 6,402,398  
 
Cash resources, end of year 1,334,276 5,183,113 6,517,389 4,957,727 
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the year ended March 31, 2008 
 

  
 1.      Organization  

 
 The Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. is a non-profit organization incorporated without share capital under the 

laws of Manitoba.  The Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. is involved in the provision of health care services to 
persons resident in the Parkland Region. 

 
 The Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. is a registered charity and, as such, is exempt from income tax and may 

issue income tax receipts to donors. 
 
 

2.     Significant accounting policies 
 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for 
not-for-profit organizations, and include the following significant accounting policies: 

 
Basis of accounting 

 
These financial statements were prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  The accrual basis recognizes revenues as 
they become available and measurable; expenses are recognized, as they are incurred and measurable as a result of 
receipts of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay. 

 
  The financial statements include the accounts of all controlled not-for-profit organizations of the Parkland Regional 

Health Authority Inc.  All significant inter-departmental transactions have been eliminated. 
 

 The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the following not-for-profit operations have been included in these 
financial statements: 

 
 Devolved facilities: 
 
 Dauphin Regional Health Centre 
 Roblin District Health Centre 
 Gilbert Plains Health Centre 
 Grandview Hospital District  
 Dauphin & District Ambulance Service 
 Roblin & District Ambulance Service 
 Grandview Personal Care Home 
 Parkland Regional Hospital Laundry Ltd. 
 Ste. Rose Ambulance Service 
 Swan Valley Ambulance Service 
   Swan Valley Lodge 
 Swan Valley Health Centre 
 Swan River Valley Personal Care Home  

Benito Health Centre 
 Waterhen Ambulance Service 
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the year ended March 31, 2008 
 

 
2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
 
 Affiliates:  
 
 McCreary/Alonsa Health Centre 
 Hôpital Général – Ste. Rose – General Hospital 
 Winnipegosis – Mossey River Personal Care Home Inc. 
 Winnipegosis General Hospital 
 St. Paul’s Home (Inc.) 
 Dr. Gendreau Personal Care Home Inc. 
  

The Canadian Mental Health Association, Swan Valley Branch, Inc. is a member of the Canadian Mental Health 
Association of Canada and operates under the jurisdiction of the Manitoba Division of the Canadian Mental Health 
Association.  In 2006/07, the financial statements included this organization as an affiliate.  This organization has not 
been included in the consolidated statements of the Parkland Regional Health Authority as only 51% of its total revenue 
for the year ended March 31, 2008 originated from the Parkland Regional Health Authority.  During the 2006/07 fiscal 
year the Canadian Mental Health Association, Swan Valley Branch, Inc. opened the Dauphin E.C.H.O. apartments.  
Revenue from these rental units has reduced the economic dependence of this organization on the Parkland Regional 
Health Authority below the 70% benchmark. 
 
The Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. also receives funding from independent organizations, which organize 
fundraising drives in various geographical areas exclusively for the use of the Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. or 
its related entities.  The extent of any funding provided by these independent entities are solely at the discretion of the 
board of directors of the independent entities. 

 
 A number of facilities within the Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. receive donations from charitable foundations.  

As there is no control, significant influence or economic interest between the Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. 
and these foundations, no financial information regarding these foundations is reported or disclosed in the financial 
statements of the Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. 
  

   
  Inventory 
 
  Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and replacement cost.  Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. 
 
  Capital assets 
 

  Capital assets are recorded at cost.  Amortization is provided using the straight-line method at rates intended to amortize 
the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives.  

 
  Buildings             20 to 40 years  

 Equipment           4 to 20 years 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
 
Long-lived assets 

 
Long-lived assets consist of capital assets with finite useful lives.  Long-lived assets held for use are measured and 
amortized as described in the applicable accounting policies.  

   
The Organization performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable.  Impairment losses 
are recognized when undiscounted future cash flows from its use and disposal are less than the asset’s carrying amount.  
Impairment is measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds its fair value.  Any impairment is 
included in operations for the year.  
 
Quoted market prices and prices for similar items are used to measure fair value of long-lived assets.  

 
Benefits obligation 

  
The Health Authority applies the accounting recommendations for employee future benefits contained in Section 3461 of 
the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountant’s Handbook.  The pre-retirement benefits are determined by actuarial 
valuation.   

  
    Revenue recognition 
  

 The Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.  Restricted 
contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are incurred.  Unrestricted contributions are 
recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is 
reasonably assured. 

 
Contributed services 

 
A number of individuals donate significant amounts of time to the Organization’s activities.  No amount is reflected in the 
statements for donated services since no objective basis is available to measure the value of such services. 

 
Measurement uncertainty 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period.  Estimates are made for amortization, based on the useful lives of capital assets, 
amounts due from Manitoba Health, revenue from Manitoba Health and In-Globe and Out-of-Globe funding that is not 
yet approved.  Retirement obligations are based on actuarial valuations.   
 
These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in 
operations in the periods in which they become known. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

Financial instruments 

 
In January 2005, the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants’ (“CICA”) issued new recommendations for the recognition 
and measurement of financial instruments, and amendments to the existing presentation and disclosure standards, effective for 
financial statements with fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2006.  On April 1, 2007, the Organization implemented 
these new standards, the main requirements of which are set out below: 
 
Held for trading: 
The Organization has classified the following financial assets and liabilities as held for trading: cash.  These instruments are 
initially recognized at their fair value, determined by published bid price in an active market.  Transactions to purchase or sell 
these items are recorded on the trade date, and transaction costs are immediately recognized in operations. 
 
Fees incurred on an exchange of financial liabilities or a modification of the terms of financial liabilities that is accounted for as 
an extinguishment are included as part of the gain or loss on extinguishment, while any related other costs incurred are 
recognized in current year operations.  All fees and costs incurred on the exchange or modification of a financial liability not 
accounted for as an extinguishment, are recognized in current year operations. 
 
Loans and receivables: 
The Organization has classified the following financial assets as loans and receivables: accounts receivable and Manitoba Health 
Receivable – employee benefits obligation, Due from Manitoba Health.  These assets are initially recognized at their fair value 
approximated by the instrument’s initial cost in a transaction between unrelated parties.  Transactions to purchase or sell these 
items are recorded on the trade date, and transaction costs are immediately recognized in operations.   
 
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at their amortized cost, using the effective interest method.  Under this 
method, estimated future cash receipts are exactly discounted over the asset’s expected life, or other appropriate period, to its net 
carrying value.  Amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition less principal 
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial 
amount and the maturity amount, and less any reduction for impairment or uncollectability.  Gains and losses arising from 
changes in fair value are recognized in net operations upon derecognition or impairment. 
 
Held to maturity: 
The Credit Union has classified the following financial assets as held to maturity: current investments and accrued interest.  
These assets are initially recognized at their fair value, determined by recent arm’s length market transactions for the same 
instrument.  Fair value is approximated by the instrument’s initial cost in a transaction between unrelated parties.  Transactions 
to purchase or sell these items are recorded on the settlement date, and transaction costs are immediately recognized in 
operations, while transaction costs arising from their disposal are immediately recognized in operations.  Total interest income, 
calculated using the effective interest rate method, is recognized in net operations. 
 
Held to maturity financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.  Under this 
method, estimated future cash receipts are exactly discounted over the asset’s expected life, or other appropriate period, to its net 
carrying value.  Amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition less principal 
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial 
amount and the maturity amount, and less any reduction for impairment or uncollectibility.  Gains and losses arising from 
changes in fair value are recognized in net operations upon derecognition or impairment. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
Other financial liabilities: 
The Organization has classified the following financial liabilities as other financial liabilities: accounts payable, accruals 
employee benefits payable and Due to Manitoba Health.  These liabilities are initially recognized at their fair value 
approximated by the instrument’s initial cost in a transaction between unrelated parties.  Transactions to purchase or sell these 
items are recorded on the trade date, and transaction costs are immediately recognized in operations.  Total interest expense, 
calculated using the effective interest rate method, is recognized in net revenue. 
 
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.  Under this method, 
estimated future cash payments are exactly discounted over the liability’s expected life, or other appropriate period, to its net 
carrying value.  Amortized cost is the amount at which the financial liability is measured at initial recognition less principal 
repayments, and plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that 
initial amount and the maturity amount.  Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized in net revenue upon 
derecognition or impairment. 
 
Financial asset impairment: 
The Organization assesses impairment of all its financial assets, except those classified as held for trading.  Impairment is 
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying value and its fair value.  Any impairment, which is not considered 
temporary, is included in current year operations. 

 
 

3. Accounts receivable 2008 2007  

 Accrued interest   7,908 28,763  
 Ambulance   229,692 278,363  
 Ambulance - Health Canada First Nations Inuit Health   262,655 139,860 
 Apotex Inc. – Signet   75,962 - 
 CancerCare Manitoba   - 103,136 
       Dauphin General Hospital Foundation   75,394 70,253 
 Diagnostic Services Manitoba   193,895 102,157 
 Employee Education Advances   95,232 102,823  
 Health Sciences Centre – Provincial Dialysis Program   61,976 -     
 Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation   -    10,000 
 Other   958,563 574,731 
 QA Adjusting Company   154,286 - 
 Residents/ Patients    253,784 162,343 
 Swan Valley Health Facilities Foundation Inc.   4,443 87,064 
 Swan Valley Gas Corporation Credit   - 138,843  

  
    2,373,789 1,798,336 
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4. Due from Manitoba Health 2008 2007 

 
 Current years Operating Funding               2,187,355     648,227  
 Out of Globe – 2007/2008 (615,719) - 
 Out of Globe – 2006/2007                - (283,682) 
 Out of Globe – 2005/2006 - (331,663)  
 Approved Capital Funding 588,586    3,154,720  
 Ambulance Interfacility Transfers and Lifeflights  346,316 352,697 

   
    2,506,538 3,540,299 
  

In-Globe Funding   
 

In-Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for Regional Health Authority programs unless otherwise specified 
as Out-of-Globe funding.  This includes volume changes and price increases for the five service categories of Acute Care, 
Long-Term Care, Community and Mental Health, Home Care and Emergency Response and Transport. All additional costs in 
these five service categories must be absorbed from within the global funding provided. 
Any operating surplus greater than 2% of budget related to In-Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of 
financial position as a payable to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At that 
time Manitoba Health determines what portion of the approved surplus may be retained by the Authority, or repaid to 
Manitoba Health.   

 
      Under Manitoba Health policy the Regional Health Authority is responsible for In-Globe deficits, unless otherwise        

approved by Manitoba Health. 
 
 
Out-of-Globe Funding  

 
Out-of-Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for specific programs. 

 
Any operating surplus related to Out-of-Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of financial position as a 
payable to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At that time Manitoba Health 
determines what portion of the approved surplus may be retained by the Authority, or repaid to Manitoba Health.   

 
 Conversely, any operating deficit related to Out-of-Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of financial 

position as a receivable from Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements.  At 
that time, Manitoba Health determines their final funding approvals, which indicate the portion of the deficit that will be 
paid to the Authority. Any unapproved costs not paid by Manitoba Health are absorbed by the Authority. 
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5. Investments 

  2008 2007 
 
 Manitoba Health sinking fund – trust account, various 18,820,271 17,334,631  
  short-term and long-term investments earning interest 
  of 2.75% to 6.00% maturing between June 2, 2008 and 
  July 31, 2008.  Sinking fund payment of $20,550,000 due    
  August 2, 2008.   
     
  Royal Bank money market funds earning an annual rate  100,250 96,934 
  of  3.42%.    
 
  Various Investments - 183,998  
 
   18,920,521 17,615,563  
 
  Amount due within one year included in current investments (18,920,521) (258,139) 
   
 
 
   - 17,357,424 
 
 
 
 

6. Capital assets 
  2007 2006 

    Accumulated Net Book Net Book 
   Cost Amortization Value Value 

  
     Land 676,319 - 676,319 626,319  
     Buildings 104,921,978 34,447,439 70,474,539 71,285,540  
     Equipment 32,470,007 25,216,816 7,253,191 8,052,740  
     Construction in progress 1,713,651 - 1,713,651 580,441  

  
  139,781,955 59,664,255 80,117,700 80,545,040 
  

 
 
    2008 2007  
 

    Accumulated Net Book Net Book 
   Cost Amortization Value Value 

  
     Land 606,685 - 606,685 676,319  
     Buildings 104,024,724 36,995,508 67,029,206 70,474,539  
     Equipment 30,283,897 24,117,725 6,166,172 7,253,191  
     Construction in progress 8,096,888 - 8,096,888 1,713,651  

  
  143,012,185 61,113,233 81,898,952 80,117,700 
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7. Benefits obligation 

 
The Health Authority recorded pre-retirement, accrued vacation, statutory holiday and overtime salary liability as 
benefits obligation.  Funding for the entitlement as at March 31, 2004 is recoverable from Manitoba Health.   
 

 Accrued retirement entitlement 

  The Health Authority has a contractual commitment to pay out to employees four days salary per year of service upon 
retirement if they comply with the following conditions: 

i) have ten years service and have reached the age of 55 or 
ii) qualifies for the “eighty” rule which is calculated by adding the number of years service to the age of the 

employee  
iii) retires at or after age 65 or 
iv) terminates employment at any time due to permanent disability 

The Health Authority has recorded an accrual amount based on an actuarial valuation that includes employees who 
qualify at the year-end balance sheet date and an estimate for the remainder of the employees who have not yet met the 
criteria above.  Funding for the retirement entitlement accrued prior to March 31, 2004 is recoverable from Manitoba 
Health on an Out-of-Globe basis in the year of payment.  The amount recorded as a receivable from the Province for pre-
retirement costs was initially determined based on the value of the corresponding actuarial liability for pre-retirement 
costs as at March 31, 2004.  Subsequent to March 31, 2004, the Province has included in its ongoing annual funding 
to the Health Authority, an amount equivalent to the change in the pre-retirement liability, which includes annual interest 
accretion related to the receivable.  The receivable will be paid by the Province when the Authority requires the funding 
to discharge the related pre-retirement liabilities 

Each year, the Health Authority updates an actuarial valuation of the accrued retirement entitlements.  The significant 
actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the accrued retirement entitlements include mortality and withdrawal rates, a 
discount rate of 5.50% (4.85% in 2007) and a rate of salary increase of 3.5% (3% in 2007) plus age related 
merit/promotion scale with nil disability. 

Pension plan 

  Most of the employees of the Authority are members of the Healthcare Employees Pension Plan (the "Plan"), which is a 
multi-employer defined benefit pension plan available to all eligible employees.  Plan members will receive benefits 
based on the length of service and on the average annualized earnings calculated on the best five of the eleven 
consecutive years prior to retirement, termination or death, that provide the highest earnings.  The costs of the benefit 
plan are not allocated to the individual entities within the related group.  As a result, individual entities within the related 
group are not able to identify their share of the underlying assets and liabilities.  Therefore, the Plan is accounted for as a 
defined contribution plan in accordance with the requirements of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants' 
Handbook section 3461. 

  Pension assets consist of investment grade securities.  Market and credit risk on these securities are managed by the Plan 
by placing assets in trust and through the Plan investment policy.  Pension expense is based on Plan management's best 
estimates, in consultation with its actuaries, together with the 6.8% (6.4% in 2007) of basic annual earnings up to the 
Canada Pension Plan ceiling contributed by employees and 8.4% (8.0% in 2007) thereafter, required to provide a high 
level of assurance that benefits will be fully represented by fund assets at retirement, as provided by the Plan.  The 
funding objective is for the employer contributions to the Plan to remain a constant percentage of employees' 
contributions. 

  Variances between actuarial funding estimates and actual experience may be material and any differences are generally 
to be funded by the participating members.  The most recent actuarial valuation of the Plan as at December 31, 2006, 
indicates that the Plan is fully funded.    
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7.       Benefits obligation (continued) 
 
The December 2002 Health Employees Pension Plan (HEPP) actuarial valuation revealed that current contribution levels 
are insufficient to fund basic plan benefits, and do not make provisions for unexpected unfunded liabilities.  The HEPP 
Board had two options:  

i) to request a rate increase from the signatory boards and unions or  
ii) to reduce benefits.   

 
 

In January 2005, the Board proposed the contribution rate increases over three years, which was approved by the signatory 
unions and employers in mid April 2005.  The Plan's actuary review indicates that the approved contribution rate increases 
should be sufficient for the pension Plan to remain fully-funded at this time.    

  
  Actual contributions to the Plan made during the year by the Authority on behalf of its employees amounted to 

$2,984,605 (2007 – $3,652,753) and are included in the statement of operations. 
 

8. Long-term debt 
 
   2008 2007 
 

 Debenture Payable  
 Held on behalf of Gilbert Plains Health Centre Inc. 
 by Province of Manitoba repayable in annual instalments  
 of $80,450 including interest at 11.125%, secured by the   
                 value of $1,263,361, due June 1, 2008.   80,450 160,900  
       
 Loan Payable  
 GMAC bearing interest at 1.900% payable in monthly 
 installments of $578 including interest, secured by a   
 2002 Chevrolet Venture, due August 2007.   - 2,880 

 
 Dauphin Plains Credit Union loan payable, secured by promissory note, 
 1st mortgage on land and buildings, General Security Agreement 
 covering all business assets, and assignment of rents, repayable 
 in monthly installments  at 5.84%, 48 month term matures July 31, 2010.  - 304,758 
  
 Manitoba Housing and Renewal Corporation loan payable repayable in 
 monthly instalments of $2,778 including interest at 0%, secured by 
 2nd mortgage on land and building, matures March 31, 2022.   - 500,000 
     
  

    80,450 968,538  
 

Amount due within one year included in current liabilities   (80,450) (118,970)  
  

     - 849,568  
  

  
 Principal repayments required in each of the next five years are estimated as follows: 
   

2009 80,450 
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9. Manitoba Health operating income    2008 2007 

 
Revenue as per Manitoba Health’s final funding document   101,679,338 95,610,874  
 
Add: Wage Settlements    1,708,562 545,928 
 Medical Remuneration Adjustments   84,681 118,551 
 Renal Unit Expansion    46,669 - 
 SSGL Expansion    15,000 -  
 Provincial Data Network Funding   3,428 39,678   

  
  103,537,678 96,315,031 
 

 Deduct:             Non-Global surplus repayable for 2007/08   (479,427) (340,803) 
                          

  
         Total funding approved by Manitoba Health   103,058,251 95,974,228 
     

 Add: Emergency Services Billings   1,439,378 495,429   
  Immunization Program   104,635 104,635  

 Influenza Program   77,585 101,859 
 Community Health Needs Assessment   4,033 1,242 
 Information Technology Training   6,752 - 
 Non Global Adjustments    391,771 1,104,927 
 Chronic Disease Prevention Initiative   73,506 91,459 
 Risk Factor and Complication Assessment Funding   12,144 15,612 
 Med2020 Maintenance   59,335 57,865 
 Telepsychiatry Clinics   16,842 25,736 
 Board expenses   2,921 6,173 
 Workplace Health and Safety – Lift and Transfer expenses  3,214 41,708 
 Provincial Client Registry   2,641 - 
 Primary Healthcare Transition Fund   - 208,614 
 Self Help Centre   - 43,700 
 Diagnostics Backfill Costs   - 9,000 
 W.H.I.C.   - 120,000 

 
  105,253,008 98,402,187  
 
 Deduct:      Amounts recorded as deferred contributions for:  
  - Long-term debt (824,065) (675,912) 
  - Equipment funding (459,870) (459,864) 
  - Major repairs (37,495) (37,488) 
  - Capital interest on loans reclassified to deferred contributions  (2,453,052) (2,360,136) 
 
 

  Revenue from Manitoba Health 101,478,526 94,868,787 
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10. Regional Health Authority costs 
      2008 2007 
 
 Corporate office salaries    865,699 876,298  
 Corporate office benefits    146,361 126,568  
 Expenses paid on behalf of facilities    228,304 27,778  
 Board expenses    77,938 108,573  
 Recruitment     28,000 46,800  
 Medical Remuneration - Global    223,223 -  
 Other     278,639 283,971  

  
     1,848,164 1,469,988  

 
 
 

11. Deferred contributions 

Expended and unexpended deferred contributions represent restricted capital funding received.  
 
Expended deferred contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount of funds received for the 
purchase of capital assets and the repayment of capital debt.  The amortization of capital deferred contributions is recorded as 
revenue in the statement of operations.  
 
Unexpended deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods represent unspent externally restricted grants for 
equipment, major repairs, construction and other expenses.   

Other deferred contributions represent donations that were received from other sources restricted by site or by program for 
the purchase of capital assets or other items, as per the donor’s request.  

Changes in the deferred contributions balance are as follows: 

 
 
 Donation   Unexpended Expended 2008 2007 
    
Balance, beginning of year 260,933 3,383,705 91,063,380 94,708,018 95,115,755 
 
Reclassification (19,407) (14,224) 282,213   248,581 (8,085) 
 
Capital asset additions (63,235) (654,295) 8,019,022 7,301,492 3,162,099 
Capital asset disposals - - (1,221,413) (1,221,413) - 
Capital funding 387 559,415 631,205 1,191,007 477,644 
Interest and donations 150,764 29,098 (30,870) 148,992 118,496 
Amortization (116) - (3,965,752) (3,965,868) (4,146,929) 
Other operating expenses  (38,811) - - (38,811) (10,962) 

  
 Balance, end of year 290,514 3,303,698 94,777,785 98,371,997 94,708,018 
 
 Deferred revenue    6,134,822 5,075,998 
 
     104,506,819 99,784,016 
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11. Deferred contributions 

 
The lines of credit and long-term debt that have been incorporated in deferred contributions include the following: 

 2008  2007 
   
 Lines of credit  8,443,616 - 
   
 Mortgages payable to Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation at interest rates from    
 4.16% to 9.63%, due from 2019 to 2029, with monthly payments of     
 principal and interest from $2,235 to $8,356, secured by buildings 3,063,992  3,165,196 
   
   11,507,608   3,165,196 

Lines of Credit 

The Authority has authorized capital lines of credit of $9,405,990 and has authorized $3,400,000 of an operating line of credit.  
These lines of credit bear interest at the bank's prime rate minus 0.8%. Security provided on these lines of credit includes an 
overdraft borrowing agreement and a letter of comfort from Manitoba Health.   

 
12. Invested in capital assets 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
     
 

 Affiliates Devolved 2008  2007 
     

 Capital Assets  
 

8,425,878 
 

73,473,074 
   

81,898,952 
  

80,117,700 
 Amounts financed by:      

Deferred contributions and revenue related to   
capital assets  

 
(7,823,014) 

 
(95,999,600) 

   
(103,822,614) 

  
(97,901,678) 

Long-term debt  
 

- 
 

(80,450) 
   

(80,450) 
  

(968,538) 
Cash – capital 120,061 1,284,532 1,404,593 816,599 
Temporary investments – capital 79,844 - 79,844 12,597 
Accounts receivable – capital - 368,869 368,869 78,683 
Due from Manitoba Health – capital - 588,586 588,586 3,154,720 
Prepaid expenses – capital - 14,398 14,398 400 
Long-term investments – capital - 18,820,271 18,820,271 17,334,631 
Accounts payable – capital (2,383) (539,415) (541,798) (45,171) 
Due from operating account  45,181 3,790,674  3,835,855        (31,471) 
       

     
 845,567 1,720,939        2,566,506     2,568,472 
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13. Commitments and contingencies       

  The nature of the health care industry's activities is such that there is usually litigation pending or in prospect at any time. 
With respect to claims at March 31, 2008 management believes the Authority has valid defenses and appropriate insurance 
coverage in place. In the event any claims are successful, management believes that such claims are not expected to have a 
material effect on the Authority's financial position.  

  On July 1, 1987, a group of health care organizations, ("subscribers"), formed Healthcare Insurance Reciprocal of Canada 
("HIROC"). HIROC is registered as a Reciprocal pursuant to provincial Insurance Acts, which permit person’s reciprocal 
contracts of the indemnity insurance. HIROC facilitates the provision of liability insurance coverage to health care organizations 
in the provinces of Ontario, Manitoba, Saskatchewan and Newfoundland.  Subscribers pay annual premiums, which are 
actuarially determined, and are subject to assessment for losses in excess of such premiums, of any losses experienced by the 
group of subscribers for the years in which they were a subscriber.  As of December 31, 2006, the Authority has a subscriber’s 
surplus of $109,660.  No such assessments have been made to December 31, 2007. 

Environmental Liabilities 
 

Management has indicated that asbestos had been found in contained areas within the one of the Affiliate’s buildings.  An 
Asbestos Abatement Consultant inspected the building in 2005 to determine the extent of the asbestos exposure and made 
recommendations on how to resolve the issue.  Preliminary funding of $750,000 has been approved to finance the abatement 
program.  As of March 31, 2008, the architect has completed the contract document phase and the bidding phase.  Based on 
the sole tender submitted during the bidding phase, the cost of the asbestos abatement was estimated at $1.1 million.  The 
Parkland Regional Health Authority is currently requesting $350,000 in additional funding for the project. 
 

 
14. Economic dependence 

 
The Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. received 87% of its total revenue for the year ended March 31, 2008 from 
Manitoba Health. 
 
 

15. Comparative amounts 
 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.  These adjustments 
included a reclassification in the current year from deferred contributions to net assets invested in capital assets, internally 
restricted net assets, and capital assets purchased from unrestricted net assets in previous years for a net amount of 
$254,382.   

 
 

16.  Amalgamation 
 
During the year, Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. combined Waterhen Ambulance Service with their current 
operations effective September 30, 2007.  Assets were transferred at net book value. 

 
 

17. Related party transactions 

The Health Authority is responsible for the overall management of the health care services provided in the Parkland region.  
Programs are delivered in the region by the Authority through its direct service operations, by Hospitals through operating 
agreements, by proprietary and non-proprietary personal care.  The Health Authority transacts business on a regular basis with 
organizations and agencies described in Notes 2, 4, 5, 7, 9 and 14.  
 
As part of a transfer agreement between Diagnostic Services of Manitoba and the Authority, assets with a net book value of 
$1,252,090 were transferred to Diagnostic Services of Manitoba for no cash proceeds.   
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18. Change in accounting policy 
 
Effective April 1, 2007, the Health Authority adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants’ new recommendations 
for the recognition and measurement of financial instruments, and amendments to the existing presentation and disclosure 
standards, as described in Note 2.  
 
CICA 1530 Comprehensive Income establishes standards for reporting and displaying certain gains and losses, such as 
unrealized gains and losses related to cash flow hedges or available-for-sale financial assets, outside of net income, in a 
statement of comprehensive income (loss).  Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in equity of the Organization 
arising from transactions and other events and circumstances, except those resulting from owner investment and distribution.  
Accumulated comprehensive income (loss) is separately disclosed as a component of equity. 
 
Although the requirements of CICA 1530 Comprehensive Income are not applicable for not-for-profit organizations, 
amendments to CICA 4400 Not-For-Profit Organizations require presentation of gains, losses, revenues and expenses arising 
from derivatives, hedges and other financial instruments as separate components of the change in net assets.   
 
The Health Authority had no items requiring reclassification to net assets. 
 
 

19. New Accounting pronouncements 
 

Capital disclosures and financial instruments – disclosure and presentation 
 
On April 1, 2008, the Health Authority will adopt three new CICA Handbook sections:  Section 1535 Capital Disclosures, 
Section 3862, Financial Instruments – Disclosures, and Section 3863, Financial Instruments – Presentation.  Section 1535 
requires disclosure of an entity’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital; information about what the entity 
regards as capital; whether the entity has complied with any capital requirements; and the consequences of not complying with 
these capital requirements.  Sections 3862 and 3863 replace Handbook Section 3861, Financial Instruments – Disclosure and 
Presentation.  Section 3863 carries forward unchanged with the presentation requirements of Section 3861 while 3862 requires 
enhanced financial instruments and how the entity manages those risks.  The Health Authority will apply the new disclosures in 
its 2009 financial statements 
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BDO Dunwoody LLP/s.r.l.
Chartered Accountants and Advisors
Comptables agréés et conseillers

700 - 200 Graham Avenue
Winnipeg  Manitoba  Canada  R3C 4L5
Telephone/Téléphone: (204) 956-7200
Fax/Télécopieur: (204) 926-7201
Toll Free/Sans frais: 1-800-268-3337
www.bdo.ca

Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors of
SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of SOUTH EASTMAN
HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC. as at March 31, 2008 and the consolidated statements of
operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Authority's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Authority as at March 31, 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Chartered Accountants

Winnipeg, Manitoba
May 23, 2008
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

March 31 2008 2007

(Restated -
(Note 9)

Regional
Health Contract

Authority Facilities Consolidated Consolidated

Assets
Current Assets

Cash $ 1,576,057 $ 295,126 $ 1,871,183 $ 1,095,852
Accounts receivable (Note 3) 2,131,862 359,457 2,491,319 1,363,533
Due from Manitoba Health (Note 5) 808,332 24,400 832,732 802,042
Inventories 1,190,682 73,832 1,264,514 1,363,171
Prepaid expense 369,295 20,145 389,440 247,274
Vacation entitlements receivable (Note 4) 2,165,279 488,270 2,653,549 2,653,549

8,241,507 1,261,230 9,502,737 7,525,421

Retirement obligations receivable (Note 15) 1,898,575 458,577 2,357,152 2,357,152

Restricted assets (Note 6) 97,975 - 97,975 215,604

Capital assets (Note 7) 41,702,481 11,326,032 53,028,513 51,969,578

$ 51,940,538 $ 13,045,839 $ 64,986,377 $ 62,067,755

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

March 31 2008 2007

(Restated -
(Note 9)

 Regional
Health Contract

 Authority  Facilities Consolidated Consolidated
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities

Bank indebtedness (Note 8) $ - $ 26,962 $ 26,962 $ 301,635
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  4,228,250 717,316  4,945,566   4,738,840
Accrued vacation entitlements (Note 4)  2,807,419 637,524  3,444,943  3,198,008
Current portion of long-term

debt (Note 10) - - - 100,840
Unearned revenue 333,221 3,484 336,705 222,509

 7,368,890  1,385,286  8,754,176  8,561,832

Accrued retirement obligations (Note 15)  3,240,447 458,577  3,699,024  3,311,699

Deferred Contributions (Note 11)
Expenses of future periods 599,915 293,131 893,046  1,157,939
Capital assets  41,174,232  11,115,033  52,289,265  49,667,195

 41,774,147  11,408,164  53,182,311  50,825,134

Commitments and contingencies  (Note 14)

Net Assets
Investment in capital assets 528,249 210,999 739,248  2,201,543
Externally restricted - Contract Facilities -  (417,187)  (417,187)   (620,582)
Externally restricted (Note 6) 97,975 - 97,975 215,604
Unrestricted  (1,069,170) -  (1,069,170)  (2,427,475)

 (442,946)  (206,188)  (649,134)  (630,910)

$ 51,940,538 $ 13,045,839 $ 64,986,377 $ 62,067,755

Page 1389

dhalilagic
Stamp

dhalilagic
Stamp

dhalilagic
Stamp



SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the year ended March 31 2008 2007

(Restated -
(Note 9)

Regional
Health Contract

Authority Facilities Consolidated Consolidated
Revenue

Province of Manitoba
Health (Note 13) $ 56,406,994 $ 8,439,397 $ 64,846,391 $ 57,658,379
Other 1,547,911 124,570 1,672,481 952,176

Government of Canada 21,500 80,834 102,334 346,536
Non-insured income 2,697,358 2,199,916 4,897,274 5,126,935
Other income and recovered services 124,598 269,605 394,203 257,947
Amortization of deferred contributions 2,280,796 490,992 2,771,788 2,561,504

63,079,157 11,605,314 74,684,471 66,903,477

Expenditures
Acute care services 21,425,704 - 21,425,704 18,819,604
Long-term care services 8,154,298 10,829,567 18,983,865 17,757,799
Community based home care services 12,421,633 - 12,421,633 11,351,267
Community based health services 4,889,630 - 4,889,630 4,906,323
Medical remuneration 5,025,767 - 5,025,767 3,669,778
Diagnostic services 3,200,172 - 3,200,172 2,962,141
Amortization of capital assets 2,280,796 490,992 2,771,788 2,561,504
Community based mental health services 2,236,526 - 2,236,526 1,996,734
Emergency Medical Services 2,310,150 - 2,310,150 1,808,211
Regional Health Authority costs 1,387,294 - 1,387,294 1,102,501
Interest on long-term debt - 4,813 4,813 9,702

63,331,970 11,325,372 74,657,342 66,945,564

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
     expenditures before other item (252,813) 279,942 27,129 (42,087)

Other Item
Retirement obligation funding
            received 2005/06 - - - 236,960

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
expenditures for the year $ (252,813) $ 279,942 $ 27,129 $ 194,873

Allocated as follows
Externally restricted $ - $ 279,942 $ 279,942 $ (225,447)
Unrestricted (252,813) - (252,813) 420,320

$ (252,813) $ 279,942 $ 27,129 $ 194,873

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
5
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended March 31 2008 2007

(Restated -
(Note 9)

Externally
Investment in Restricted - Externally

Capital Assets Contract Restricted
(Note 12) Facilities (Note 6) Unrestricted Total Total

Balance, beginning of year $ 2,201,543 $ (620,582) $ 215,604 $ (2,427,475) $ (630,910) $ (843,070)

Interest revenue - - 23,901 - 23,901 17,787

Expenditures during year - - (141,530) - (141,530) (500)

Adjustment to Deferred Contributions -
capital assets 71,304 - - - 71,304 -

Adjustment to Deferred Contributions -
expenses of future periods - 972 - - 972 -

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
expenditures for the year - 279,942 - (252,813) 27,129 194,873

Net changes in investment in capital assets (1,533,599) (77,519) - 1,611,118 - -

Balance, end of year $ 739,248 $ (417,187) $ 97,975 $ (1,069,170) $ (649,134) $ (630,910)

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended March 31 2008 2007

(Restated -
(Note 9)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Excess of revenue

over expenditures for the year $ 27,129 $ 194,873
Net income (expenditure) of restricted net assets (117,629) 17,287
Adjustments for

Amortization of capital assets 2,771,788 2,561,504
Amortization of deferred contributions related

to capital assets (2,771,788) (2,561,504)
Deferred contributions - expenses of future periods

Receipts 502,893 78,754
Expenditures (344,863) (226,321)

67,530 64,593

Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable (1,127,786) 62,870
Due from Manitoba Health (30,690) (394,514)
Inventories 98,657 (374,820)
Prepaid expense (142,166) (11,008)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 206,726 911,169
Accrued vacation entitlements 246,935 248,910
Unearned revenue 58,251 (200,651)

(690,073) 241,956

Accrued retirement obligations 387,325 302,829

(235,218) 609,378

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
(Increase) decrease in restricted assets 117,629 (17,287)
Purchase of capital assets (4,988,709) (3,675,654)

(4,871,080) (3,692,941)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Repayment of long-term debt (100,840) (149,251)
Receipt of deferred contributions related

to capital assets 6,257,142 2,617,193

6,156,302 2,467,942

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,050,004 (615,621)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 794,217 1,409,838

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,844,221 $ 794,217

Represented by
Cash $ 1,871,183 $ 1,095,852
Bank indebtedness (26,962) (301,635)

$ 1,844,221 $ 794,217

Supplementary Information
Interest paid $ 4,813 $ 9,702

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
7
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

March 31, 2008

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles for not-for-profit organizations.

Revenue Recognition The Authority follows the deferral method of accounting for
contributions which include donations and government grants.

Under the Health Services Insurance Act and regulations thereto,
the Authority is funded primarily by the Province of Manitoba in
accordance with budget arrangements established by Manitoba
Health. Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the period to
which they relate. Grants approved but not received at the end of
an accounting period are accrued. Where a portion of a grant
relates to a future period, it is deferred and recognized in that
subsequent period. These financial statements reflect agreed
funding arrangements with Manitoba Health with respect to the
year ended March 31, 2008.

With respect to actual operating results, certain adjustments to
funding will be made by Manitoba Health after completion of their
review of the Authority's accounts.

In Globe Funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for
Regional Health Authority programs unless otherwise specified as
Out of Globe Funding.  This includes volume changes and price
increases for the seven service categories of Acute Care, Long
Term Care, Community and Mental Health, Home Care and
Emergency Response and Transport, Diagnostic Services and
Regional Health Authority. All additional costs in these seven
service categories must be absorbed from within the global
funding provided.

Any operating surplus greater than 2% of budget related to global
funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of financial
position as a payable to Manitoba Health until such time as
Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At that time,
Manitoba Health determines what portion of the approved surplus
may be retained by the Authority, or repaid to Manitoba Health.

Under Manitoba Health policy, the Regional Health Authority is
responsible for In Globe deficits, unless otherwise approved by
Manitoba Health.

Out of Globe Funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for
specific programs.

Any operating surpluses related to Out of Globe funding
arrangements are recorded on the statement of financial position
as a payable to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba
Health reviews the financial statements. At that time, Manitoba
Health determines what portion of the approved surplus may be
retained by the Authority, or repaid to Manitoba Health.
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

March 31, 2008

Revenue Recognition
(continued) Conversely, any operating deficits related to Out of Globe funding

arrangements are recorded on the statement of financial position
as a receivable from Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba
Health reviews the financial statements. At that time, Manitoba
Health determines their final funding approvals which indicate the
portion of the deficit that will be paid to the Authority. Any
unapproved costs not paid by Manitoba Health are absorbed by
the Authority.

Any adjustments will be reflected in the year the final statement of
recommended costs is received from Manitoba Health.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when
received or receivable if the amount to be received can be
reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in
the year in which the related expenses are recognized.
Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital assets are
deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis, at a
rate corresponding with the amortization rate for the related
capital assets.

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the
year in which the related expenses are recognized. Unrestricted
investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which
it is earned.

Inventories Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable
value, cost being determined by the first-in, first-out method in all
areas excluding materials management which is determined by
the average cost method.

Employee Future Benefits Pension and other employee future benefit costs are determined
using the projected benefit method prorated on years of service
and based on best estimate assumptions.

Contributed Services A substantial number of volunteers contribute a significant amount
of their time each year. Because of the difficulty of determining
the fair value, contributed services are not recognized in the
financial statements.

9
Page 1394



SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

March 31, 2008

Capital Assets Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost.  Contributed
capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of
contribution. Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to
expense. Betterments which extend the estimated useful life of an
asset are capitalized. When a capital asset no longer contributes
to the Authority's ability to provide services, its carrying amount is
written down to its residual value.

Capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis using the
following annual rates:

Buildings 2.5%
Major equipment  10% to 20%

Use of Estimates In preparing the Authority's financial statements, management is
required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenditures
during the period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Financial Instruments The Authority utilizes various financial instruments.  Unless
otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the Authority is
not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising
from these financial instruments and the carrying amounts
approximate fair values.

All transactions related to financial instruments are recorded on a
settlement date basis.

The Authority classifies its financial instruments into one of the
following categories based on the purpose for which the asset was
acquired.  The Authority's accounting policy for each category is
as follows:

Held-for-trading

This category is comprised of cash, bank indebtedness and
restricted assets.  They are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the
income statement.  Transaction costs related to instruments
classified as held-for-trading are expensed as incurred.
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

March 31, 2008

Financial Instruments
(continued) Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets resulting from
the delivery of cash or other assets by a lender to a borrower in
return for a promise to repay on a specified date or dates, or on
demand.  They arise principally through the provision of goods
and services to customers, but also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary assets comprised of accounts receivable,
amounts due from Manitoba Health, vacation entitlements
receivable and retirement obligations receivable.  They are
initially recognized at fair value and subsequently carried at
amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method, less any
provision for impairment.  Transaction costs related to loans and
receivables are expensed as incurred.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities includes all financial liabilities other than
those classified as held-for-trading and comprises accounts
payable and accrued liabilities.  These liabilities are initially
recognized at fair value and subsequently carried at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method.  Transaction costs
related to other financial liabilities are expensed as incurred.

Pension Plan The Authority maintains a multi-employer defined benefit pension
plan available to all eligible employees.

The obligation under the plan is determined using the accrued
benefit method reflecting projected benefits for services rendered
to date.  The surplus or deficit of the market value of the plan
assets over the obligation is amortized on a straight-line basis
over the expected average remaining service life of the plan
members.
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

March 31, 2008

New Accounting
Pronouncements Recent accounting pronouncements that have been issued but

are not yet effective, and have a potential implication for the
Authority, are as follows:

Financial instruments - disclosures and presentation

CICA Handbook Section 3862, Financial Instruments - Disclosure,
increases the disclosures currently required to enable users to
evaluate the significance of financial instruments for an entity's
financial position and performance, including disclosures about
fair value.  CICA Handbook Section 3863, Financial Instruments -
Presentation, replaces the existing requirements on the
presentation of financial instruments, which have been carried
forward unchanged.  These standards are effective for interim and
annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or
after October 1, 2007.  The Authority is currently evaluating the
impact of the adoption of these changes on the disclosure and
presentation within its financial statements.

Inventories

The CICA has issued Section 3031, Inventories, which provide
guidance on determining cost as well as other recognition,
measurement, disclosure and presentation issues related to
inventories.  The standard include guidance on the treatment of
excess capacities, inventory valuation and write-downs and
additional elements to be considered in measuring inventory
costs.  The new standard is effective for interim and annual
financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after
January 1, 2008.  The Authority is currently assessing the impact
of the new standard.
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

1. Entity Definition and Basis of Financial Statements

South Eastman Health/Santé Sud-Est Inc. was incorporated under the laws of the Province of
Manitoba on January 2, 1996. The Authority commenced providing health care services on
April 1, 1997 in the southeastern region of Manitoba. The Authority is a registered charity
under The Income Tax Act and accordingly is exempt from income taxes, provided certain
requirements of The Income Tax Act are met.

Under the Regional Health Authorities and Consequential Amendments Act, the Authority
entered into negotiations with all health care facilities in the region to either transfer those
facilities' operations, property, liabilities and obligations to the Authority or to operate as a
contract facility funded by the Authority. These negotiations have been completed.
Obligations under these agreements are detailed further in Note 6.

Three facilities within the region operate under contract arrangements for funding with the
Authority. They are Rest Haven Nursing Home, Menno Home for the Aged and Villa Youville
Inc. - Nursing. The operations of these facilities have been consolidated in these financial
statements as the Authority exercises significant influence over them by virtue of acting as
funding agent. Any non-Manitoba Health funded activities of these facilities (i.e. apartments,
seniors' housing) have been excluded from these financial statements.

2. Change in Accounting Policy

On April 1, 2007, the Authority retroactively adopted, without restatement of prior periods,
CICA Handbook Section 3861, "Financial Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation", Section
3855, "Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement" and Section 3865, "Hedges".
These new Handbook Sections provide comprehensive requirements of the recognition and
measurement of financial instruments, as well as standards on when and how hedge
accounting may be applied.

Under these new standards, all financial instruments, including derivatives, are included on
the consolidated statement of financial position and are measured either at fair market value
or, in limited circumstances, at cost or amortized cost.

The adoption of these new standards had no material impact on the Authority's consolidated
statement of operations.
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

3. Accounts Receivable
2008 2007

Receivables from patients $ 132,934 $ 169,976
Receivables from residents 47,050 29,832
Goods and services tax 120,892 193,752
Due from related parties of Contract facilities 282,508 292,396
Capital funding receivable 559,799 -
The Bethesda Foundation Inc. 690,265 55,689
Ste. Anne Foundation 121,053 242,106
De Salaberry Foundation 4,778 -
Other

RHA 485,676 283,479
Contract facilities 46,364 96,303

$ 2,491,319 $ 1,363,533

4. Accrued Vacation Entitlements

The Authority records a provision for accrued vacation entitlements.  Prior to March 31, 2004
changes in the liability related to vacation were recoverable from Manitoba Health.  At that
date, Manitoba Health advised that subsequent to March 31, 2004 all funding related to past
and future vacation entitlement costs would be included in in-globe funding and that the
maximum liability to be recognized by Manitoba Health to facilities would be capped at March
31, 2004 levels.  Accordingly, each year as vacation entitlements are paid and earned by the
Authority's employees, the related vacation entitlement receivable is collected and re-
established up to this maximum amount.

An analysis of the changes in the vacation entitlements receivable from Manitoba Health is as
follows:

2008 2007

Balance, beginning of year $ 2,653,549 $ 2,653,549
Net changes in vacation entitlements receivable - -

Balance, end of year $ 2,653,549 $ 2,653,549

An analysis of the changes accrued in the vacation entitlements is as follows:

Balance, beginning of year $ 3,198,008 $ 2,949,098
Net increase (decrease) in accrued vacation entitlements 246,935 248,910

Balance, end of year $ 3,444,943 $ 3,198,008
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

5. Due from (to) Manitoba Health
2008 2007

In Globe
Immunization funding $ 85,702 $ 97,778
Interfacility transfers - EMS 94,368 159,965
Supportive Housing - 42,200
Long Term Care Strategy Phase 2 135,475 -
Other 79,142 44,465

Out of Globe
MAHCP wage standardization 152,632 372,500
MGEU wage standardization 519,432 247,757
MNU wage standardization 207,212 -
Capital funding 2006/07 - 182,934
Capital funding 2007/08 108,112 -
Capital interest 102,546 -
Medical remuneration 2006/07 - (345,557)
Medical remuneration 2007/08 (651,889) -

$ 832,732 $ 802,042

6. Restricted Assets

The Authority entered and completed negotiations with the health facilities in the region to
have their obligations, property, and liabilities transferred to the Authority. The Authority
agreed to use prior operating surpluses to promote health within the specific districts. These
operating surpluses were as follows:

De Salaberry
District
Health Ste. Anne
Centre Hospital Bequests Total

Balance, beginning
of year $ 68,575 $ 15,741 $ 131,288 $ 215,604

Interest 11,007 2,652 10,242 23,901

2007/2008 Acquisition of
property - - (141,530) (141,530)

Balance, end of year $ 79,582 $ 18,393 $ - $ 97,975

In addition, the Authority received a restricted bequest which has been used for long-term
care at Bethesda Place.
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

7. Capital Assets
2008 2007

Accumulated Accumulated
Cost Amortization Cost Amortization

Land $ 768,088 $ - $ 693,088 $ -
Buildings 61,579,841 15,971,270 56,855,443 14,537,017
Major equipment 19,829,508 14,100,323 21,800,190 14,919,159
Construction in progress 922,669 - 2,077,033 -

$ 83,100,106 $ 30,071,593 $ 81,425,754 $ 29,456,176

Cost less accumulated
       amortization $ 53,028,513 $ 51,969,578

8. Bank Indebtedness

The Authority has an approved operating line of credit with the Royal Bank of Canada to a
maximum amount of $2,700,000. The line of credit bears interest at Royal Bank prime less
0.80% and is supported by an authorization letter from Manitoba Health and assignment of
fire insurance covering property of every description.

In addition, the contract facilities have approved operating lines of credit with various
financial institutions for an aggregate of $395,000. The lines of credit bear interest at prime to
prime plus 1% and are supported by authorization letters from Manitoba Health and general
security agreements.
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

9. Long-term Debt Restatement

During the year it was identified that a bank loan of one of the Authority's contract facilities
continued to be reflected as debt where in fact it should have been shown as being assumed
by the Province of Manitoba and transferred to deferred contributions (consistent with other
bank debt reclassified in 2004).

Accordingly long-term debt and deferred contributions have been restated as follows:

April 1, April 1,
2007 2006

Long-term debt, as previously reported $ 591,499 $ 821,390
Reclassification of debt assumed by the Province

of Manitoba to Deferred Contributions (Note 11) (490,659) $ (571,299)

100,840 250,091

Current portion of long-term debt 100,840 88,000

Remaining long-term debt to be funded by
the Authority and its contract facilities $ - $ 162,091

10. Long-Term Debt

2007
2008 restated

Bank loan payable $ - $ 100,840

Less: current portion of long-term debt - 100,840

$ - $ -
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

11. Deferred Contributions

a) Expenses of future periods

Deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods represent the unspent amount
of donations, grants received and grants for major repairs and construction projects.

2008 2007

Balance, beginning of year $ 1,157,939 $ 1,277,852

Additional amounts received during year 502,893 78,754
Less 2007/2008 expenditures (344,863) (226,321)
Reclassifications to unearned revenues (see below) (55,945) -
Transfers to externally restricted
       - contract facilities (see below) (972) -
Transfers (to) from deferred contributions - capital assets (366,006) 27,654

Balance, end of year $ 893,046 $ 1,157,939

b) Capital assets

Deferred capital contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount
of donations, grants received and funding of approved borrowings for the purchase of
capital assets. The amortization of deferred capital contributions is recorded as revenue in
the statement of operations at rates which match the amortization of the related capital
asset purchased with the donations, grants or approved borrowings.

Changes in the deferred contribution balance are as follows:
2007

2008 restated

Balance, beginning of year,
       As previously stated $ 49,176,546 $ 49,067,861
       Adjustment to long-term debt (Note 9) 490,649 571,299

       As restated 49,667,195 49,639,160

Additional contributions received, net 6,257,142 2,617,193
Transfers to deferred contributions
       - expenses of future periods 366,006 (27,654)
       - investment in capital assets (see below) (71,304) -
Less assets transferred to Diagnostic Services of Manitoba (1,157,986) -
Less amounts amortized to revenue (2,771,788) (2,561,504)

Balance, end of year $ 52,289,265 $ 49,667,195
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

11 Deferred Contributions (continued)

During the year the Authority undertook a complete review of all deferred contribution
accounts and identified certain reclassifications among unearned revenue, deferred
contributions and net assets were necessary.  These reclassifications have been
presented as current year adjustments.

12. Investment in Capital Assets
2007

2008 restated

a) Investment in capital assets is calculated as follows:

Capital assets $ 53,028,513 $ 51,969,578
Amounts financed by

Deferred contributions 52,289,265 49,667,195
Long-term debt - 100,840

$ 739,248 $ 2,201,543

b) Change in net assets invested in capital assets is calculated as follows:

Excess of revenue over expenditures
   Amortization of deferred contributions

related to capital assets $ 2,771,788 $ 2,561,504
   Amortization of capital assets (2,771,788) (2,561,504)

$ - $ -

Net changes in investment in capital assets
   Purchase of capital assets (net) $ 4,988,709 $ 3,675,654
          Manitoba Health funding (4,923,372) (2,021,704)
          Donations (1,333,770) (595,489)
   Transfers to (from)
      Deferred contributions
           - expenses of future periods (net) (366,006) 27,654
   Repayment of long-term debt 100,840 149,251

$ (1,533,599) $ 1,235,366
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

13. Revenue from Manitoba Health
2008

Revenue from Manitoba Health
Revenue as per Manitoba Health's final funding document $ 65,380,462
Add: Manitoba Department of Finance reallocations 998,029

Wage standardization 834,638

67,213,129
Deduct:

Medical remuneration 651,889

Total Funding Approved by Manitoba Health 66,561,240
Deduct: Amounts recorded as deferred contributions

   - expenses of future periods 19,794
   - capital assets 1,214,792
   - capital interest funded 404,128
   - capital interest receivable 76,135

Revenue from Manitoba Health $ 64,846,391

14. Commitments and Contingencies

a) The nature of the health care industry's activities is such that there is usually litigation
pending or in prospect at any time. With respect to claims at March 31, 2008,
management believes the Authority has valid defences and appropriate insurance
coverages in place. In the event any claims are successful, management believes that
such claims are not expected to have a material effect on the Authority's financial position.

b) On July 1, 1987, a group of health care organizations, ("subscribers"), formed Healthcare
Insurance Reciprocal of Canada ("HIROC"). HIROC is registered as a Reciprocal pursuant
to provincial Insurance Acts, which permit persons reciprocal contracts of the indemnity
insurance. HIROC facilitates the provision of liability insurance coverage to health care
organizations in the provinces of Ontario, Manitoba, Saskatchewan and Newfoundland.
Subscribers pay annual premiums, which are actuarially determined, and are subject to
assessment for losses in excess of such premiums, of any experienced by the group of
subscribers for the years in which they were a subscriber. No such assessments have
been made to March 31, 2008.

The Authority's coverage also includes contract facilities as named insured parties.

c) At March 31, 2008, minimum annual lease payments under operating leases for premises
expiring 2021 are $ 216,935 to be adjusted annually for inflation.
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

14. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

d) The Authority has entered into operating leases with The Royal Bank of Canada for
equipment. The Authority has approved lease financing available through Royal Bank
Leasing Inc. to a maximum of $500,000 with $224,460 unutilized at March 31, 2008. The
equipment is leased at a monthly cost of $11,638, under leases expiring on or before
November 2011. The estimated annual lease payments for the next four years are as
follows:

2009 $ 135,798
2010 68,963
2011 35,835
2012 14,944

15.  Employee Future Benefits

a) Accrued retirement entitlement

Accrued retirement obligations are based on an actuarial valuation as at March 31, 2008.

The RHA's contractual commitment for the pre-retirement entitlement for members of the
Health Employee Pension Plan is to pay out four days of salary for each year of service upon
retirement if the employee complies with one of the following conditions:

- has ten years service and has reached the age of 55 or;
- qualifies for the "eighty" rule which is calculated by adding the number of years service

to the age of the employee or;
- retires at or after age 65 or;
- terminates employment at any time due to permanent disability

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Authority's accrued retirement
entitlements include mortality and withdrawals rates, a discount rate of 5.5% (4.85% in 2007)
and a rate of salary increase of 3.5% (3.0% in 2007) plus an age related merit/promotion scale
with no provision for disability.

The amount recorded as a receivable from the Province for pre-retirement costs was initially
determined based on the value of the corresponding actuarial liability for pre-retirement costs
as at March 31, 2004.  Subsequent to March 31, 2004, the Province has included in its ongoing
annual in-globe funding to the Authority, an amount equivalent to the change in the pre-
retirement liability, which includes annual interest accretion related to the receivable.  The
receivable will be paid by the Province when required.
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SOUTH EASTMAN HEALTH/SANTÉ SUD-EST INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2008

15.  Employee Future Benefits (continued)

An analysis of the changes in the employee benefits payable is as follows:
2008 2007

Balance, beginning of year $ 3,311,699 $ 3,008,870
Net increase in pre-retirement entitlements 387,325 302,829

Balance, end of year $ 3,699,024 $ 3,311,699

b) Pension plan

Substantially all of the employees of the Authority are members of the Healthcare Employees
Pension Plan (a successor to the Manitoba Health Organization Inc. Plan) (the "Plan") which is
a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan available to all eligible employees of the
participating members of the Plan.  Plan members will receive benefits based on the length of
service and on the average of annualized earnings during the best five years of the last eleven
years prior to retirement, termination or death, that provides the highest earnings.

Pension assets consist of investment grade securities.  Market and credit risk on these
securities are managed by the Plan by placing plan assets in trust and through the Plan
investment policy.

Pension expense is based on Plan management's best estimates, in consultation with its
actuaries, of the amount, together with the 6.80% of salary, 8.40% for salaries greater than
$44,900, contributed by employees, required to provide a high level of assurance that benefits
will be fully represented by fund assets at retirement, as provided by the Plan.  The funding
objective is for employer contributions to the Plan to remain a constant percentage of
employees' contributions.

Variances between actuarial funding estimates and actual experience may be material and any
differences are generally to be funded by the participating members.  The most recent actuarial
valuation of the plan as at December 31, 2006 indicates the Plan is fully funded. Contributions
to the plan made during the year by the Authority on behalf of its employees amounted to
$2,081,397 (2007 - $1,877,394) and are included in the statement of operations.

The remainder of employees are members of the Province of Manitoba's defined benefit Civil
Service Superannuation Plan.  Liability for variances between actuarial funding estimates and
actual experience lies with the Province.

16. Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to provide better comparison with the
current year's presentation. Excess of revenue over expenditures remains as previously
reported.
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